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WHO WE ARE
Engineers and Geoscientists British Columbia is the regulatory and licensing body for  

the engineering and geoscience professions in BC. To protect the public, we maintain robust 
standards for entry to the professions, and comprehensive regulatory tools to support  

engineers and geoscientists in meeting professional and ethical obligations.

As our members find solutions to drive the world forward,  
we’re here to make sure the highest professional and ethical standards are upheld.

Together, we build a better life for everyone—in British Columbia and around the world.
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GOVERNANCE

President	  
Katherina Tarnai-Lokhorst, P.Eng., FEC,  
FGC (Hon.)

Vice President	  
Harlan Kelly, P.Eng., FEC

Immediate Past President	  
Caroline Andrewes, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.),  
CPA, CMA

Councillors	  
Doug Barry, P.Eng., FEC 
Antigone Dixon-Warren, P.Geo. 
Catherine Hickson, P.Geo., FGC 
Susan MacDougall, P.Eng., FEC 
Lianna Mah, P.Eng., FEC 
Brock Nanson, P.Eng. 
Nimal Rajapakse, P.Eng. 
Larry Spence, P.Eng. 
Kevin Turner, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.) 
Jeremy Vincent, P.Geo. 
Tim Watson, P.Eng.

Government Appointees	  
Suky Cheema, CPA, CA 
Alan Andison, BA, LLB 
Leslie Hildebrandt, ICD.D, LLB  
David Wells, JD 
 
Ken Laloge, CPA, CA, TEP 
until Nov. 20, 2018 
John Turner, P.Ag. (retired) 
until Dec. 31, 2018

Engineers and Geoscientists BC is governed by a council of elected members and government  
appointees. Council is accountable to the public through the Ministry of the Attorney General,  

under the Office of the Superintendent of Professional Governance.

Council is responsible for setting policy and direction for the association under the authority of  
the Professional Governance Act and the Engineers and Geoscientists Act. The association’s strategic  

plan provides the vision, mission, values, and goals that help guide Council’s efforts.

ABOUT USABOUT US
OUR VISION

Engineering and geoscience professionals creating a better future for all.

OUR MISSION

To serve the public interest as a progressive regulator that 
supports and promotes the engineering and geoscience professions.

OUR VALUES

In our governance, administration, and delivery of service,  
we are guided by the following values:
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This past year presented us with many 
challenges, but thanks to the hard work 
and commitment of our volunteers, 
Council, and staff, we navigated the 
new changes facing the professions. 
I am grateful for the contributions of 
our professional community and their 
commitment to protect the people of 
this province, and I look forward to 
the many new opportunities that are 
certain to arise for our professions in 
the future.  

Katherina Tarnai-Lokhorst  
P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.) 

MESSAGE FROM  
THE PRESIDENT

With continuous advancements in 
technology and professional practice, 
and a changing regulatory landscape, 
the professions are constantly evolving 
and progressing. By combining 
excellence in technical practice with 
high standards of professional and 
ethical conduct, we continue to make 
the lives of British Columbians better 
every day. 

While the introduction of the 
Professional Governance Act—new 
governing legislation for Engineers 
and Geoscientists BC—represents a 
major shift in the regulation of our 
professions, our mission to serve 
the public interest as a progressive 
regulator remains steadfast. We  
are adaptable and flexible, and 
our quality management program, 
professional development offerings, 
and practice guidelines support our  
members’ performance to ensure they 
consistently meet the highest practice 
and ethical standards. 

It has been an honour to serve as 
president and it is a great privilege to 
present this year’s annual report, which 
summarizes the selfless dedication of 
our volunteers, Council, and staff,  
for the reporting year July 1, 2018 – 
June 30, 2019. 

This report marks the completion 
of the second year of our strategic 
plan for 2017–2021. First launched 
in 2017 and extended to 2021 to 
manage the transitions associated with 
implementing the new Professional 
Governance Act, this plan serves as 

the framework and guiding light for 
the association’s activities. Driving 
towards our vision of engineering and 
geoscience professionals creating a 
better future for all, the plan establishes 
the following goals:

Goal 1: Uphold and protect the public 
interest through the regulation of the 
professions.

Goal 2: Establish, maintain, and 
enforce qualifications and professional 
standards.

Goal 3: Promote and protect the 
professions of engineering and 
geoscience (subject to Goals 1 and 2). 

Our strategic plan also provides the 
means to track and assess the progress 
of these goals, further supporting 
our values of transparency and 
accountability. You will see the status of 
these reported throughout the pages of 
this annual report.

During this last year, our efforts to 
deliver on our strategic plan goals 
focused on a number of key areas.

•	 �Developing a system for corporate 
regulation that demonstrates 
enhanced public protection and 
meets future legislative requirements.

•	 �Engaging members, industry, and 
the public to raise awareness of 
the association and reaffirm our 
regulatory role and responsibilities.

•	 �Diversifying the professions by 
supporting initiatives that seek to 
increase the participation of under-
represented communities and ensure 
the sustainability of the professions 
for the future.
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we have continued to lead the way in 
addressing the Truth and Reconciliation 
Commission of Canada’s Calls to 
Action. This year, we introduced a pilot 
project that includes the creation of an 
Indigenous Engagement Working Group, 
career outreach to Indigenous youth,  
as well as a professional development 
event on Indigenous engagement in 
engineering and geoscience projects. 

Public perception of and trust in the 
professions is of paramount importance.  
So while 2018–2019 presented 
challenges, and the regulatory climate 
still remains unsettled, we will continue 
to work with Government, industry, 
stakeholders, and the wider professions 
to ensure we maintain high standards 
of professional and ethical practice to 
uphold our primary duty: to protect the 
public interest. 

Thank you to President Tarnai-Lokhorst, 
Council, staff, member volunteers, and 
the wider engineering and geoscience 
community for your continued efforts.  
I look forward to continuing our work 
together for the people of British Columbia.

 
Ann English, P.Eng., FEC, FCSSE  

REPORT OF THE  
CEO AND REGISTRAR

The past year introduced some 
significant changes to British 
Columbia’s regulatory landscape—
most notably, the introduction of the 
Professional Governance Act. This new 
governing legislation for Engineers 
and Geoscientists BC—along with a 
new oversight structure—represents 
a major shift in how the professions 
of engineering and geoscience are 
regulated. For the first time in almost 
100 years, we have a completely new 
Act; over the course of the next few 
years, elements of our legacy act will be 
repealed as regulations and bylaws to 
support the new Act are released. 

The introduction of a new Act can, of 
course, lead to concerns and uncertainty. 
However, we have worked tirelessly to 
anticipate the impact of the changes 
on the professions. These efforts have 
positioned us well in responding to 
this change. As regulations to support 
the implementation of the new Act 
are introduced, we will continue to 
contribute constructively to discussions 
with Government, ensuring they 
understand the complexities and risks—
and the positive alternatives—of any 
proposed policy change.

With the impact of new regulations  
taking place over a number of years,  
our commitment to reviewing the 
regulation of corporate entities as a 
means of enhancing public protection 
remains unchanged. This year marked  
the completion of a significant  
four-year review by the Advisory 
Task Force on Corporate Practice into 
corporate practice and regulation. We 
are now focused on the development 
of a new Corporate Practice Program 
that will ensure we will meet our future 

legislative requirements, and will value 
public protection and the practices of 
engineering and geoscience. 

While introducing new legislation does 
require significant attention, time, and 
resources, the diversification of the 
engineering and geoscience professions 
remains one of our top areas of focus. 
In addition to our ongoing support 
for Engineers Canada’s 30 by 30 goal 
to increase the percentage of women 
working in the professions to 30% by 
2030, we are working with industry and 
academia to drive initiatives that support 
women entering and remaining within  
the engineering profession. 

In June of this year, we proudly  
partnered with the Applied Science 
Technologists and Technicians of BC  
(ASTTBC) and the Association of 
Consulting Engineering Companies British 
Columbia (ACEC-BC) on a $993,000 
contract with the BC Government to 
advance the recruitment and retention 
of women in engineering and technology 
in British Columbia. Furthermore, our 
partnership with a national research 
consortium, Engendering Success in 
STEM, will help us better understand 
the biases girls and women face when 
considering a career in STEM fields.

Increasing the accessibility of the 
profession for communities that 
are currently under-represented 
across the industry extends beyond 
gender, and this past year has seen 
our work in Indigenous engagement 
grow. Establishing and maintaining 
respectful relationships with Indigenous 
communities is vital to ensuring our 
professions positively contribute to 
the preservation of Indigenous culture 
and self-determination. As a regulator, 
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Alan Andison, LLB

David Wells, JD

has demonstrated the necessary 
competencies and capabilities to grant 
and rescind independent practice rights.

We are pleased with how the leadership 
of Engineers and Geoscientists BC is 
ensuring that the public is protected and 
the values of the organization are upheld 
during this rigorous process.

We believe that Council understands its  
responsibility to uphold the public interest;  
maintaining this focus, with an eye to  
future regulatory changes, should enable  
successful self-regulation of the engineering 
and geoscience professions to continue. 
We look forward to our continued service 
to this organization and to the public. 

Respectfully submitted,

GOVERNMENT 
APPOINTEES’ REPORT

The Province of British Columbia 
appoints four members of the public 
to Engineers and Geoscientists BC’s 
Council. As independent members of 
the public, we have a duty to represent 
the public interest in the regulation of 
professionals authorized to practice 
engineering and geoscience in BC.

We work alongside elected members 
of Council to govern the affairs of 
Engineers and Geoscientists BC in its 
mandate to protect the public interest. 
This report is our observation on how 
Engineers and Geoscientists BC has met 
this mandate in the past year. 

Many Council actions demonstrate how 
the association upholds and protects the 
public interest, including the following:

•	 �Engagement in the implementation of 
the Professional Governance Act

•	 �Completion of a task force report on 
corporate regulation

•	 �Practice regulation and providing 
support and guidance to members

•	 �Promotion of diversity initiatives

•	 �Review of association fees, 
expenditures, and other financial 
assessments 

•	 �Implementation of the strategic plan 
and enhancing member engagement

•	 �Efforts to promote awareness 
and support reconciliation with 
Indigenous peoples in BC 

In this dynamic operating environment, 
we support continued consideration of 
the new Professional Governance Act and 
the creation of appropriate regulations 
to support the mandate of regulatory 
oversight in the public interest.

In prior years, the following four areas 
were identified as areas that needed 
improvement, and were prioritized for 
Council to move towards a resolution:

•	 �Mandatory continuing professional 
development reporting and 
verification

•	 �Regulation of engineering and 
geoscience firms

•	 �Systematic practice reviews

•	 �Risk assessment and development  
of a register of priorities

There has been significant activity 
on these areas. Council has taken 
the initiative to approve additional 
resources and time to address 
systematic practice review and risk 
assessment measures.

The new Professional Governance Act 
calls for the regulation of engineering 
and geoscience firms, and mandatory 
continuing professional development. 
We support these legislative inclusions 
and their associated regulations. The Act  
mandates the size and composition of  
Council; we will continue to ensure 
qualified candidates are put forward  
for election.

Finally, the new Act enables the granting 
of independent practice rights to a 
wider range of professions, including 
technologists and technicians, whose 
scope of practice overlaps with that of 
engineers. We believe that any such 
rights should reside under a regulatory 
body, sufficiently aligned with a public 
safety mandate, and which possesses 
the resources, authority and expertise 
to remove those rights when deemed 
necessary to protect public safety. We 
believe Engineers and Geoscientists BC  

Suky Cheema, CPA, CA

Leslie Hildebrandt, ICD.D, LLB 
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MEASURING  
OUR PROGRESS

Engineers and Geoscientists BC is accountable to the public and our  
members as we work to deliver the goals and outcomes of our strategic plan.  

Here, we summarize our efforts and activities to achieve those goals.
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UPHOLD AND PROTECT THE PUBLIC INTEREST  
THROUGH THE REGULATION OF THE PROFESSIONS

GOAL 1

STRENGTHENING OUR 
REGULATORY FRAMEWORK
We worked with the BC Government to 
translate the results of the Professional 
Reliance Review into new legislation 
that will provide tools for us to 
strengthen our regulatory framework. 
The Professional Governance Act was 
introduced this year; we kept our 
members informed through news 
articles and webinars, and we sought 
feedback on our response to the 
new legislation through an advisory 
committee comprising members from 
diverse industries.

IMPROVING ORGANIZATIONAL 
GOVERNANCE
New regulations in the Professional 
Governance Act brought into force 
new requirements for elections and 
nominations, specifically a condition 
that all candidates standing for 

election must be approved by the 
Nominating Committee. Engineers and 
Geoscientists BC was well prepared for 
this requirement. Having anticipated the 
change, we proactively established a 
new merit-based process for candidates 
that is fully compliant with the new Act  
and was noted by Government as a 
model for other regulators to follow.

WORKING TO IMPLEMENT THE 
PROFESSIONAL GOVERNANCE ACT
In February 2019, Council directed 
increased organizational focus on 
implementing the Professional Governance 
Act. To achieve this, we took a number 
of steps, including developing positions 
on key policy items based on member 
and Council feedback; drafting and filing 
a response to Government’s intentions 
paper; and initiating a departmental 
reorganization to provide dedicated 
resources to support the implementation 
of the new Act.

COMMUNICATING OUR 
REGULATORY MANDATE
Using a variety of communication 
platforms, we listened to members 
and collected input on a number of 
key topics, including the Professional 
Governance Act, continuing professional 
development, and corporate regulation. 
Through branch presentations, surveys, 
webinars, articles, and social media, 
we worked to share information that 
helped members better understand 
our role as a regulator and our primary 
mandate of public protection.

We work to ensure that our role as a robust regulator is broadly understood,  
our professional standards are embraced by our members, and the laws that  

guide us reflect our changing professions.

KEY HIGHLIGHTS FROM SURVEYS:

•	� 90% of members agree with our mandate. 
They believe we should put the public 
interest before members’ interests, and 
they feel we are authentic when we talk 
about our duty to the public interest

•	� 8 out of 10 members are satisfied with how 
we are carrying out our regulatory duties

2,900 
participants responded to the CPD 
survey and provided input on potential 
changes to the continuing professional 
development model

498 
members registered to take part in the 
Professional Governance Act webinar

32 
engagements (meetings, events, 
conferences) were held with members 
of the BC Government and the Official 
Opposition
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GOAL 2

CREATING TOOLS TO SUPPORT 
PROFESSIONAL EXCELLENCE
We continue to expand opportunities 
for members to increase their 
awareness and understanding of the 
standards expected of them. This 
year, we published a number of new 
professional practice guidelines and 
advisories, often in collaboration with 
other regulators and industry partners. 
We worked to strengthen our practice 
advice and support tools through 
professional development webinars, 
courses, and articles with a focus on 
professional practice matters.  

ENHANCING PUBLIC  
SAFETY THROUGH  
CORPORATE REGULATION
The Advisory Task Force on Corporate 
Practice completed the third phase of 
their review of corporate regulation, 
and we commenced development of a 
Corporate Practice Program that will 
establish a new regulatory framework 
for engineering and geoscience 
organizations in BC. Government has 
recognized the strength of our  

model, which will improve regulatory 
oversight, enhance public protection, 
and provide opportunities to 
organizations to improve their 
processes and reduce their risk.

UPHOLDING STANDARDS  
OF CONDUCT AND PRACTICE
We build public trust by making sure 
our regulatory standards are met. This 
year, we closed or resolved a record 
number of investigation, discipline, and 
enforcement files. As our membership 
and the reach of their work grows, we 
are increasing our capacity to receive 
and handle complaints and ensure 
enforcement issues are processed and 
resolved more efficiently.

IMPROVING NATIONAL 
HARMONIZATION OF 
REGULATORY PROCESSES
Our work continues towards 
harmonizing regulatory processes 
with other professional associations 
across the country. Our made-in-
BC competency-based method for 
assessing applicants continues to gain 
national acceptance, and is now being 
piloted by Geoscientists Canada—
another step towards a truly national 
registration and assessment system.

REDESIGNING CONTINUING 
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
This year the Continuing Professional 
Development Committee initiated the 
first phase of consultation on a revised 
program for professional development. 
Over 2,900 members provided input 
on potential changes to the way 
professional development requirements 
are set out. This feedback will be 
considered when we create a new 
program that maintains appropriate 
standards for public protection, 
applies best practices from across the 
country, complies with the provisions 
in the Professional Governance Act, and 
incorporates member input. 

ESTABLISH, MAINTAIN, AND ENFORCE QUALIFICATIONS  
AND PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS

Our robust regulatory framework supports members in meeting the  
highest standards of professional and ethical behaviour, and we safeguard  

these standards through effective discipline and enforcement.

NEW AND REVISED PRACTICE  
GUIDELINES PUBLISHED:

10 
free webinars with 2,993  
participants focused on learnings  
from regulatory programs

1,901 
practice-related queries

8,759 
people attended continuing 
professional development  
events (42% increase);  
143 sessions hosted

1	� Structural Engineering Services  
for Part 3 Building Projects (Ver. 4.0)

2	� Designing Guards for Building  
Projects (Ver. 2.0)

3	� Whole Building Energy Modelling  
Services (Ver. 1.0)

4	� Onsite Sewerage Systems (Ver. 1.3)

5	� Performance-Based Seismic Design  
of Bridges (Ver. 1.0)

6	� Legislated Flood Assessments in a 
Changing Climate in BC (Ver. 2.1)
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PROMOTE AND PROTECT THE PROFESSIONS OF  
ENGINEERING AND GEOSCIENCE

GOAL 3

We continue to work to develop a membership that is inclusive and diverse,  
widely trusted by our stakeholders, and prepared to meet the needs of British Columbians. 

INCREASING DIVERSITY  
IN OUR PROFESSIONS
We are putting diversity principles into 
action because we know that diverse 
perspectives strengthen our professions 
and our decision-making processes.  
We continue to make progress 
towards the 30 by 30 goal—a national 
commitment to increase newly 
registered female engineers to 30 
percent by 2030. This year we also 
signed onto the Sector Labour Market 
Partnership Project, and are working 
to support individuals who are under-
represented in our professions, which 
includes women, Indigenous peoples, 
and newcomers to Canada.

TAKING ACTION ON TRUTH  
AND RECONCILIATION
We are working to address the Calls To 
Action of the Truth and Reconciliation 
Commission of Canada by implementing 
five key Calls that relate to the primary 
duty of the association. This year, 
we became the first engineering and 
geoscience regulator in Canada to do 
so, by implementing a pilot program, 
which includes the creation of a working 
group, a professional development 
event on Indigenous engagement in 
engineering and geoscience projects, 
and career outreach.

SUPPORTING LABOUR  
MARKET DEMAND
By improving our application 
assessment processes with a 
streamlined risk-based approach, 
we substantially reduced processing 
times for all application types and 
enhanced our registration procedures. 
We are cultivating a skilled workforce 
by helping employers match their 
recruitment requirements with the skills 
of internationally trained professionals. 
Through the Sector Labour Market 
Partnership with the Applied Science 
Technologists and Technicians of BC and 
the Association of Consulting Engineers 
British Columbia, we are exploring 
how best to attract, retain, and support 
career advancement of equity-seeking 
groups in BC’s engineering and 
technology sector.

INSPIRING THE  
NEXT GENERATION
We strive to develop an inclusive culture 
for current and future generations of 
engineers and geoscientists to reflect 
Canada’s diverse society. During 
National Engineering and Geoscience 
Month, we helped inspire students 
to consider careers in engineering 
and geoscience with a special focus 
on young women. We continued to 
showcase the pathways to entering 
the professions through a number of 

programs and initiatives like our career 
awareness outreach to elementary 
and high school students, our strong 
connections to post-secondary 
institutions, and our mentoring program. 

HIGHLIGHTING OUR ROLE  
AS A TRUSTED REGULATOR
Building trust and understanding  
with stakeholders is essential to  
our public protection mandate.  
This year, we published information  
on a number of key public safety issues, 
including disciplinary hearings related 
to the Mount Polley tailings storage 
facility breach, and a consent order 
concerning the structural design of a 
high-rise tower in Surrey, BC. We also 
committed to engaging collaboratively 
with Government on the Professional 
Governance Act, sharing our insights, 
concerns, and expertise on effective 
Right-Touch Regulation, and making 
policy recommendations—many of which 
have been accepted and implemented 
into the new legislation. 

5.7% 
membership growth  
(35,269 to 37,280)

21% 
of newly licensed members are 
female / 15% of all members 
are female

7,687 
K-12 students engaged

1,701 
post-secondary students engaged

2018/2019 ANNUAL REPORT

16

2018/2019 ANNUAL REPORT

17



July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019

by the numbers

TOTAL MEMBERSHIP 
at June 30, 2019

37,280

Professional Engineers	 25,528

Professional Geoscientists	 1,903

Dual Registrants	 96

Non-Resident Licensees	 684

Limited Licensees	 231

Engineers-in-Training	 6,655 

Geoscientists-in-Training	 462

Student Members	 1,721

TRENDS IN NATURE OF COMPLAINTS RECEIVED:

1.	� Professional conduct issues  
(not professional competency)

2.	�� Geotechnical engineering

3.	�� Structural engineering

DISCIPLINE AND INVESTIGATION

complaints received against 
professional members85

files resulting in action by  
the Discipline Committee16

investigation files closed42

61% of members declared 
CPD compliance in 2018

PRACTICE REVIEWS AND OQM AUDITS  
IDENTIFIED THESE TOP PRACTICE ISSUES:

•	� Checking of projects during 
implementation or construction

•	� Records relating to work being 
appropriately checked

•	� Use of seal

•	� Document retention

•	� Displaying certificates

KNOWLEDGE GAPS

CPD COMPLIANCE

PRACTICE REVIEWS

practice review files 
adjudicated119

practice review files  
found in compliance105

practice review files  
requiring improvement 11

practice review files  
sent to investigation3
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The Engineers and Geoscientists 
BC Benevolent Fund Society is 
administered by a Board of Directors 
and operates at arm’s length from 
the association, with support from 
association staff. The Society’s Board 
of Directors confidentially reviews 
applications for assistance. The  
Society may provide one-time grants  
or access to financial, career, or 
personal counselling, or other services  
as necessary.

The Benevolent Fund Society had 
a slightly higher level of activity in 
2018–2019, receiving 14 applications, 
compared with 10 applications in the 
2017–2018 period. The Society gave 
out $26,666 in grants, about $10,000 
more than the previous period. 

The Society’s capital is healthy,  
having received $41,965 in donations 
this past year. The Directors are 
thankful for the generosity of 
members. These contributions mean 
the Benevolent Fund Society is able to 
provide more benefits to members in 
need. Members who make donations 
are issued tax receipts for contributions 
over $10 and all donations are greatly 
appreciated. The Benevolent Fund 
Society would also like to recognize the 
association volunteers who chose for 
the association to make a $20 donation 
to the Society, in lieu of them receiving 
a small gift for their service. 

Many members who received assistance 
from the Society in the past expressed 
that it made them feel someone still 
cared, and the support provided a boost 
to their self-esteem when they were 
experiencing difficult circumstances. 

Information on how to receive 
confidential assistance from the 
Benevolent Fund Society can be found 
at egbc.ca/benevolent. 

Benevolent Fund  
Society Directors

Robert Martin  
P.Eng., FEC, Chair 

Susan Hollingshead 
P.Eng./P.Geo., Secretary

Karen Ling 
P.Eng., Treasurer

Margaret Li  
P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.), Director

Paul Blanchard  
P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.), Director

BENEVOLENT FUND SOCIETY
The Engineers and Geoscientists BC Benevolent Fund Society is a registered  

charity that assists association members in financial distress to overcome short-term  
cash-flow difficulties, usually from a loss of employment. 

In 2018–2019, the Engineers and 
Geoscientists BC Foundation awarded 
$70,050 to 50 engineering and 
geoscience students. The Foundation 
itself administered 28 scholarships;  
15 awards were supported through BC’s  
post-secondary institutions; and branches 
of Engineers and Geoscientists BC 
facilitated 7 awards. Of the scholarships 
administered through the Foundation, 
about half were awarded to women—
demonstrating the relevance of gender 
diversity in the professions. 

The Foundation had another successful 
year, receiving over $105,000 from 
over 1,500 individual donors and 
companies. In particular, the Foundation 
would like to thank BC Hydro once 
again for its generous contribution of 
$15,000 towards the BC Hydro/ 
Engineers and Geoscientists BC 
Foundation Scholarship. 

As part of Engineers and Geoscientists 
BC’s volunteer recognition program, 
volunteers were given the option of either 
receiving a small gift or having a donation 
made on their behalf to one of Engineers 
and Geoscientists BC’s two charities.  
The Foundation would like to thank 

the over 500 association volunteers 
who chose to opt out of receiving a gift 
and instead request that Engineers and 
Geoscientists BC make a donation to the 
Foundation. The $10,000 raised through 
this initiative will help support the 
education of up to 10 students.

The Foundation sends its condolences and  
thanks to the families of Bob Gerath P.Geo.,  
and Ken MacEwan P.Eng., who passed  
away in the last year. Their families 
chose to name the Foundation as a 
charity to honour Mr. Gerath’s and Mr. 
MacEwan’s memories. Their names join 
those of the many members who have 
made significant contributions to the 
engineering and geoscience professions 
over their careers.

The Engineers and Geoscientists BC 
Foundation is a registered charity 
chartered in 1993 to provide scholarships 
and bursaries to post-secondary 
engineering and geoscience students 
(Registration no.: 821138393 RR0001). 

To obtain more information about 
the Foundation, volunteer, or make 
a donation, visit egbc.ca/Foundation, 
email foundation@egbc.ca, or call 
604.430.8035.

A volunteer board of directors, all of 
whom are professional engineers and 
geoscientists registered with Engineers 
and Geoscientists BC, provides strategic 
direction to the Foundation.

Foundation Directors

John Clague  
P.Geo., FGC, FEC (Hon.), Chair

Harry Lee 
P.Eng., Secretary

Simon So  
P.Eng. (Retired), Treasurer

Richard Bos 
P.Eng., Director 

Lindsay Bottomer 
P.Geo., FGC, FEC (Hon.), Director

Dick Fletcher 
P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.), Director

Karen Savage  
P.Eng., FEC, Director

FOUNDATION
The Engineers and Geoscientists BC Foundation provides scholarships and bursaries  

to engineering and geoscience students studying in BC. It aims to encourage excellence and  
dedication in these fields by reducing financial barriers faced by students. 
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OUR VOLUNTEERS
The work of Engineers and Geoscientists BC is supported by the participation of  

our volunteers. It is through their dedicated efforts that we are able to carry out our regulatory 
role, making BC a more prosperous, healthier, and safer place to live, work, and play. 

Accredited Employer MIT  
Program Advisory Committee
Mark Alev, P.Eng.
Andy Bannon, P.Eng.
Scott Campbell, P.Eng.
David Chan, P.Eng.
Elaine Chong
Dieter Diedericks, P.Eng.
Layna Dove
Efrosini Drimoussis, P.Eng.
Dick Fletcher, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Rita Gareb
Robert Gonzalez, P.Eng.
Faisal Hamood, P.Eng.
Jonathan Helmus, P.Eng.
Neil Hemrajani, P.Eng.
James Kay, P.Eng.
Victoria Kilpatrick
Wesley Narciso, P.Eng.
Ken Newbert, P.Eng.
Ross Pritchard, P.Eng.
Derek Ratzlaff, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Alexander Riftin, P.Eng.
Lee Rowley, P.Eng.
Gary Ruddick, P.Eng.
Lauren Semancik
Brittney Speed
Kimberly Struthers
Brent Volk
Dan Walker, P.Eng.
Jack Zhang, P.Eng.
Ye Zhou, P.Eng.

Accredited Employer MIT  
Program Competency Assessors
Richard Ahrend, P.Eng.
Mark Alev, P.Eng.
Darlene Atkinson, P.Eng.
Torsten Ball, P.Eng.
Eddie Ballarin, P.Eng.
Andy Bannon, P.Eng.
Cory Barker, P.Eng.
Iain Barnes, P.Eng.
Kevin Baskin, P.Eng.
Brian Beach, P.Eng.
Megan Beaulieu, P.Eng.
Greg Beaveridge, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Nick Bevilacqua, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Shaun Bidulka, P.Eng.
Lloyd Bie, P.Eng.
Ziad Boustany
Ian Boyle, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Andres Briseno De La Vega, P.Eng.

Tom Bryski, P.Eng.
Dan Byrne, P.Eng.
Daniel Campbell, P.Eng.
Scott Campbell, P.Eng.
Shiloh Carlson, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Robert Chambers, P.Eng.
Milton Chan, P.Eng.
Craig Chong, P.Eng.
Ian Chong, P.Eng.
Terry Chow, P.Eng.
Scott Croasdale, P.Eng.
Jack Cui, P.Eng.
Paulo Da Graca, P.Eng.
Sonia D’Ambra, P.Eng.
Nicholas De Ridder, P.Eng.
Joe Di Placito, P.Eng.
Dieter Diedericks, P.Eng.
Patrick Dufresne, P.Eng.
Roger Dupuis, P.Eng.
Chris Durupt, P.Eng.
Luba Ebert, P.Eng.
Anthony Elaraj, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Amr Fathalla, P.Eng.
Dawn Flotten, P.Eng.
Jerry Froese, P.Eng.
Darrel Gagnon, P.Eng.
Robert Gale, P.Eng.
Michael Gedig, P.Eng.
Sunny Ghataurah, P.Eng.
Bob Gill, P.Eng., FEC
Haile Habtegiorgis, P.Eng.
Jeff Halpenny, P.Eng.
Lina Halwani, P.Eng.
Jeremy Hanson, P.Eng.
Jennifer Hardy, P.Eng.
Neil Hemrajani, P.Eng.
Sean Herold, P.Eng.
Stuart Hood, P.Eng.
Tony Horlor, P.Eng.
Derek Hull, P.Eng.
Andreas Huster, P.Eng.
Hisham Ibrahim, P.Eng.
Grant Irvine, P.Eng.
John Irving, P.Eng.
Wim Jellema, P.Eng.
Richard Job, P.Eng.
Chuck Jochems, P.Eng.
James Kay, P.Eng.
Scott Kenyon, P.Eng.
Khalid Khan, P.Eng.
Saqib Khan, P.Eng.
Tom Kneale, P.Eng.
Jarrod Koster, P.Eng.

Anthony Kreuzinger, P.Eng.
Yury Kulikov, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Samuel Lam, P.Eng.
David Lee, P.Eng.
Ivan Lee, P.Eng.
Freda Leong, P.Eng.
Claire Lewis, P.Eng.
Scott Lewis, P.Eng.
Jimmy Li, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
David Lo, P.Eng.
Lane Logan, P.Eng.
Nini Long, P.Eng.
Sean Mahon, P.Eng.
Sharon Maksym, P.Eng.
Arash Masbough, P.Eng.
Brigid McGoran Canil, P.Eng.
Vladimir Mikler, P.Eng.
Ed Miska, P.Eng.
Wesley Narciso, P.Eng.
Janis Netzel, P.Eng.
Ken Newbert, P.Eng.
Tom Ng, P.Eng.
Micheal O’Keeffe, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Michael Osborne, P.Eng.
Goran Ostojic, P.Eng.
Ashley Pakula, P.Eng.
Narvir Patrola, P.Eng.
Jo-Anne Perrett, P.Eng.
May Phang, P.Eng.
Mary Jane Piggott, P.Eng.
German Pizarro Sala, P.Eng.
Nico Polano, P.Eng.
Andrew Port, P.Eng.
Mark Porter, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Alen Postolka, P.Eng., FEC
Ken Pun, P.Eng.
Derek Ratzlaff, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Tracey Raume, P.Eng.
Peter Reid, P.Eng.
John Richmond, P.Eng./P.Geo.
Alexander Riftin, P.Eng.
John Robbie, P.Eng.
Simone Rousseau, P.Eng.
Lee Rowley, P.Eng.
Patrick Ryan, P.Eng.
Don Sandys-Wunsch, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Jeff Schmidt, P.Eng.
Calvin Schmitke, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Joel Schwartz, P.Eng., FEC
Brian Seo, P.Eng.
Matt Seyd, P.Eng.
Joel Shaw, P.Eng.
Faisal Siddiqui, P.Eng.

Robin Smith, P.Eng.
Julia Steele, P.Eng.
Garry Stevenson, P.Eng./P.Geo., FGC
Todd Stewart, P.Eng.
Brady Taylor, P.Eng.
Khanh Tran, P.Eng.
Julien Traverse, P.Eng.
Dominic Tsang, P.Eng.
Ark Tsisserev, P.Eng., FEC
Met Ulker, P.Eng., FEC
Katherine Ulmer, P.Eng.
Jesse Unke, P.Eng.
Bruno Vahedi, P.Eng.
Kevin Van Vliet, P.Eng.
Rafael Villarreal Pacheco, P.Eng.
Harry Ivor Wang, P.Eng.
George Warnock, P.Eng.
Neil Wilson, P.Eng.
Andrew Witte, P.Eng.
Kimberley Wong, P.Eng.
David Woolford, P.Eng.
Craig Work, P.Eng.
Daryn Yonin, P.Eng.
James Young, P.Eng.
Thomas Zaban, P.Eng.
Jack Zhang, P.Eng.
Ye Zhou, P.Eng.

Accredited Employer MIT  
Program Registration Mentors
Pia Abercromby, P.Eng.
John Babineau, P.Eng.
Martin Birse, P.Eng.
Travis Booth, P.Eng.
Jeffrey Brackett, P.Eng.
Jeremy Bruce, P.Eng.
Scott Bushell, P.Eng.
Michael Carreira, P.Eng.
Francis Chung, P.Eng.
Simon Church, P.Eng.
Max Cronk, P.Eng.
Colin Davis, P.Eng.
Jonathan Desautels, P.Eng.
Jason Dowling, P.Eng.
Robyn Edgar, P.Eng.
Oliver Gao, P.Eng.
Nick Guaran, P.Eng.
Andrew Hind, P.Eng., FEC
Jason Ho, P.Eng.
John Ho, P.Eng.
Henry Hon, P.Eng.
Kelly Hood, P.Eng.
Leo Huang, P.Eng.
Adam Jarolim, P.Eng.
Christopher Johnson, P.Eng.
Kyle Lightfoot, P.Eng.
Christopher Man, P.Eng.
David Marchand, P.Eng.
Trevor McKenzie, P.Eng.
Rozina Merchant, P.Eng.
Pratima Milaire, P.Eng.
Sonia Mollaei Miyandoab, P.Eng.
Janis Netzel, P.Eng.
Beata Ng, P.Eng.
Keenan Ngo, P.Eng.
Gagan Oberoi, P.Eng.
Brad Ou Yang, P.Eng.
Tibor Palinko

John Richmond, P.Eng./P.Geo.
Kevin Roberts, P.Eng.
Andrew Robertson, P.Eng.
Michal Simhon, P.Eng.
Raya Smertina, P.Eng.
Jordan Soquila, P.Eng.
Brendan Stevenson, P.Eng.
Ben Ticknor, P.Eng.
Kurtis Topping, P.Eng.
Lauren Vale, P.Eng.
Jimmy Valliere, P.Eng.
Libby Vidic, P.Eng.
Tijana Vulic, P.Eng.
Allison Waldick, P.Geo.
Ryan Wang, P.Eng.
Michael Wheaton, P.Eng.
Trevor Wilson, P.Eng.
Patrick Zerr, P.Eng.

Advisory Task Force on  
Corporate Practice
Alan Andison, BA, LLB
Don Burns, P.Eng.
Patricia Chong, P.Eng.
David Chwaklinski, P.Eng., FEC
Mike Currie, P.Eng., FEC
Michael Davies
Catherine Fritter, P.Eng.
Adrian Gygax, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Susan MacDougall, P.Eng.
Scott Martin, P.Eng.
David Melville, P.Geo.
Ed Miska, P.Eng.
Dirk Nyland, P.Eng., FEC
Julius Pataky, P.Eng.
Gregory Scott, P.Eng.
Colin Smith, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Kevin Turner, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
John Turner, P.Ag. (Ret)
Gary Webster, P.Eng.
Selena Wilson, P.Eng.

ASTTBC/Engineers and Geoscientists BC  
Joint Practice Board
Andy Mill, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Ross Rettie, P.Eng. (Non-Practising), FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Colin Smith, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)

Audit Committee
Doug Barry, P.Eng., FEC
Suky Cheema, CPA, CA 
Leslie Hildebrandt, ICD.D, LLB
Nimal Rajapakse, P.Eng.
John Turner, P.Ag. (Ret)
Jeremy Vincent, P.Geo.
Tim Watson, P.Eng.

Board of Examiners
Jim Atwater, P.Eng., FEC
Roger Beckie, P.Eng., FEC
Tony Bi, P.Eng., FEC
Martin Bollo, P.Eng.
Colin Bradley, P.Eng.
Tom Calvert, P.Eng. (Non-Practising), FEC 
David Dreisinger, P.Eng., FEC
Bill Dunford, P.Eng., FEC
Satish Gopalakrishnan, P.Eng.
Aaron Gulliver, P.Eng.

Rishi Gupta, P.Eng., FEC
Steve Helle, P.Eng.
Maria Holuszko, P.Eng.
Robert Ito, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Greg Johnson, P.Eng.
Diane Kennedy, P.Eng.
Philippe Kruchten, P.Eng., FEC
Ezra Kwok, P.Eng., FEC
Anthony Lau, P.Eng.
Jianbing Li, P.Eng.
Jie Liang, P.Eng.
Jim Lim, P.Eng., FEC
Victor Lo, P.Eng., FEC
Uli Mayer, P.Eng.
Scott McDougall, P.Eng.
Christopher McKesson, P.Eng.
Jon Mikkelsen, P.Eng.
Sidney Mindess, P.Eng.
Frank Mucha, P.Eng.
Susan Nesbit, P.Eng.
Taco Niet, P.Eng.
Kevin Oldknow, P.Eng.
Stephen O’Leary, P.Eng.
Kevin Orpen, P.Eng.
Rimas Pakalnis, P.Eng., FEC
Bob Parolin, P.Eng., FEC
Faro Sassani, P.Eng., FEC
Yang Shi, P.Eng.
Siegfried Stiemer, P.Eng., FEC
Thomas Tannert, P.Eng.
Monica Varga, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Renata Wood, P.Eng.

Building and Space Planning Task Force
Paul Blanchard, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Ollie Bonham, P.Geo., FGC
Tomer Curiel, P.Eng., FEC
Nadine King, P.Eng.
Mark Porter, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Mike Waberski
Michael Wrinch, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)

Building Codes Committee
Nav Chahal
Emmanuel Domingo, P.Eng., FEC
David Fookes, P.Eng.
Tao Jiang, P.Eng.
Mark Lawton, P.Eng., FEC
Albert Leung, Architect AIBC
Isabella Li, P.Eng.
Emilia Mazzonna, P.Eng.
Rozina Merchant, P.Eng.
Naki Ocran, P.Eng.
Oon-Soo Ooi, P.Eng.
Leonard Pianalto, P.Eng., FEC
Alexander Riftin, P.Eng.
Tim Ryce, P.Eng., FEC
Mihajla Vitkovic, P.Eng.
Brad Walton
Jason Watt, P.Eng.

Building Enclosure Committee
Christopher Black, P.Eng.
Tom Dueckman, P.Eng.
Robyn Edgar, P.Eng.
Warren Knowles, P.Eng.
Sean Liaw, P.Eng., FEC
John Lovatt, P.Eng.
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Sophie Mercier, P.Eng.
Leslie Peer, P.Eng., FEC
Kevin Pickwick, P.Eng.
Joel Schwartz, P.Eng., FEC
Patrick Shek, P.Eng., FEC
Terra Shimbashi
Christa Wilcock, P.Eng.
Michael Wilson, P.Eng.

Burnaby/New Westminster Branch
Eugene Bui, P.Eng.
David Chen, P.Eng.
Li Sheng Chen, P.Eng.
Jillian Cooke, P.Eng.
Prabeen Joshi, EIT
Abhishek Kumar, EIT
Ethan Liu, EIT
Vaishali Rampurkar, EIT
Niankun Rao
Kirthi Ravikanti, EIT
John Roxas, EIT
Lien Tran, EIT
Harmanjit Uppal, EIT
Carl Wong, P.Eng.
Wen Zhang, Eng.L.

Career Awareness Program
Kerly Acosta Salgado, P.Eng.
Courage Aghedo, P.Eng.
Syed Ali, P.Eng.
Pattie Amison, P.Geo.
Riley Anderson, EIT
Arindam Bari
Spencer Behn, EIT
Christopher Chan, EIT
Ellen Chen, EIT
Thomas Clay-Smith
Marcie Cochrane, P.Eng.
Candace Cook, EIT
Jillian Cooke, P.Eng.
Dani Delaloye, P.Eng.
Jane Desrochers, EIT
Simon Diemert, P.Eng.
Kirsten Dougans, EIT
Robyn Edgar, P.Eng.
Joseph English, EIT
Bridgette Epp, EIT
Deanna Erickson, EIT
Paul Gann, P.Geo., FGC
Sean Gray, P.Eng.
Christine Gustafson, P.Eng.
Gabe Hamilton, P.Eng.
Karla Herrera Palmeros, EIT
Hannah Keelson, EIT
Sze Kong, P.Eng.
Peter Krahn, P.Eng.
Bengul Kurtar, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
Jordan Larkins, EIT
Nelson Lee, P.Eng.
Michele Lepitre, P.Geo.
Nathanael Leung, EIT
Tom Louie
Olivia Lutes, P.Eng.
Angelina Mak, EIT
Sofia Marmolejo Le Garrec, P.Eng.
Greg McCaffrey, P.Eng.
Firdosh Mehta, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
Dan Meldrum, P.Geo.
Katherine Miller, EIT

Faisal Mirza, P.Eng.
Martina Mishkova, P.Eng.
Nalaine Morin
Travis Nguyen, EIT
Sydney Nicholson, GIT
Christina Noel, EIT
Brent Olson, P.Geo.
Glen Parker, P.Eng.
Sonya Parsad, GIT
Megan Pate, P.Eng.
Mary Jane Piggott, P.Eng.
Kevin Preston, P.Eng.
Sarah Prior, EIT
Harry Quartey-Harrison, P.Eng.
Kirk Richardson, EIT
Martina Riessner, P.Eng.
Jessica Sabarre, P.Eng.
Alyssa Schultz, EIT
Louise Shannon, P.Eng.
Daljot Singh
Maggie Smith, P.Eng.
Prerna Sohal, P.Eng.
Eric Son, EIT
Jessica Steeves, P.Eng.
Blake Tabian, EIT
Robyn Thomas, P.Eng.
Delanie Thorlakson, EIT
Lovisa Thorsteinsdottir, P.Eng.
John Watson, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Ed Wilson, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)

Central Interior Branch
Simon Angus, P.Eng.
Thomas Bailey, P.Eng.
Shiloh Carlson, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Katherine Clark, EIT
Dane Clarke, P.Eng.
Warren Grafton, P.Geo.
Philip Haseldine, P.Geo.
Steve Helle, P.Eng.
Paramon Koutorjevski
Mike Mason, P.Eng.
Lee Peltz, P.Eng.
Vicki Pistner, EIT
Andrew Rae, P.Eng.
Jim Sosiak, P.Eng.
Olaf Starck, P.Eng.
Don Williams, P.Eng.
Eric Zhu, P.Eng.

Certified Professionals Committee
Alan Brown
Steven Hart
Murray Johnson, P.Eng., FEC
Jeffery Mitchell, P.Eng.
Dave Steer, P.Eng.
Barry Thorson, P.Eng., FEC
Linda Valter
Jeremy Woolf

Climate Change Advisory Group
Brent Burton, P.Eng.
Antigone Dixon-Warren, P.Geo.
Susan MacDougall, P.Eng.
Brian Menounos, P.Geo.
Glen Parker, P.Eng.
Mark Porter, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Conor Reynolds, P.Eng., FEC
Malcolm Shield, P.Eng.

Glen Shkurhan, P.Eng.
Dominique Sigg
Jeremy Vincent, P.Geo.
Johanna Wolf
Rachel Wyles, P.Eng.

Consulting Practice Committee
Mario Bianchin, P.Geo.
John Bolduc, P.Eng.
Mike Dickens, P.Eng.
Kourosh Hadavi, P.Eng./P.Geo.
Ivan Lee, P.Eng.
Kitty Leung, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Sean Liaw, P.Eng., FEC
Gordon McDonald, P.Eng.
Todd Stewart, P.Eng.

Continuing Professional  
Development Committee
Mark Adams, P.Eng.
Doug Barry, P.Eng., FEC
Suky Cheema, CPA, CA
Ted Fuller, P.Eng./P.Geo.
Hamid Ghanbari, P.Eng.
Steven Kuan, P.Eng., FEC
Anja Lanz, EIT
Dennis McJunkin, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Brock Nanson, P.Eng.
Shane O’Neill, P.Geo.
Eric Pettit, P.Eng.
Lori Polukoshko, P.Eng.

Council
Alan Andison, BA, LLB
Caroline Andrewes, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.), CPA, CMA
Doug Barry, P.Eng., FEC
Suky Cheema, CPA, CA
Antigone Dixon-Warren, P.Geo.
Catherine Hickson, P.Geo., FGC
Leslie Hildebrandt, ICD.D, LLB
Harlan Kelly, P.Eng.
Ken Laloge, CPA, CA, TEP
Susan MacDougall, P.Eng., FEC
Lianna Mah, P.Eng., FEC
Brock Nanson, P.Eng.
Nimal Rajapakse, P.Eng.
Ross Rettie, P.Eng. (Non-Practising), FEC, FGC (Hon.) 
Larry Spence, P.Eng.
Bob Stewart, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Katherina Tarnai-Lokhorst, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Kevin Turner, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
John Turner, P.Ag. (Ret)
Jeremy Vincent, P.Geo.
Tim Watson, P.Eng.
David Wells, JD

Council Election and  
Bylaw Vote Scrutineers
John Clague, P.Geo., FGC, FEC (Hon.)
John Watson, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Ken Williams, P.Eng., FEC

Discipline Committee
Paul Adams, P.Eng., FEC
Rajib Ahsan, P.Eng.
Christopher Arthur, P.Eng.
Upul Atukorala, P.Eng.
Jaswinder Bansal, P.Eng.
Ed Bird, P.Eng.

Peter Bobrowsky, P.Geo.
Ollie Bonham, P.Geo., FGC
Emily Cheung, P.Eng., FEC
Derek Cooper, P.Eng.
Neil Cumming, P.Eng.
Frank Denton, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Jurgen Franke, P.Eng.
John Haythorne, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Thomas Leung, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Tom Morrison, P.Eng., FEC
Bruce Nicholson, P.Eng. (Non-Practising), FEC
Roz Nielsen, P.Eng.
Dave Ricketts, P.Eng., FEC
Colin Smith, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Ronald Yaworsky, P.Eng.

East Kootenay Branch
Jay Armstrong, P.Eng.
Zabrina Pendon, P.Eng.
Douglas Vanhooren, P.Eng.
Jeremy Zandbergen, P.Eng.

Editorial Advisory Committee
Iqbal Bhuiyan, P.Eng.
Julio Bracho, P.Eng.
Lisa Brown, P.Eng.
Karen Chan, P.Eng.
Thomas George, P.Eng.
Houman Ghalibafian, P.Eng.
Gloria Grill, P.Eng.
Roger Ord, P.Eng.
Allison Westin, GIT
Matt Zieleman, EIT

Elevator Devices Working Group
Michael Chadney, P.Eng.
Nav Chahal
Rick Cheung, P.Eng., FEC
Houssam Hamze
Brett Keeble, EIT
Kevin Lau, P.Eng.
Albert Leung, Architect AIBC 
Thomas Leung, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Emilia Mazzonna, P.Eng.

Energy Efficiency and  
Renewable Energy Division
James Allen, P.Eng.
Leya Behra, P.Eng.
Seamus Frain, P.Eng.
Matthew Harper, P.Eng.
Mahda Jahromi, P.Eng.
Ross Johnson, P.Eng.
Dorota Kwasnik, P.Eng.
Nelson Lee, P.Eng.
Abbas Nikbakht, EIT
Adrienne Patterson, EIT

Engineering Competency  
Assessment Canada User Group
Kalina Bacher-René
Amit Banerjee, P.Eng.
Ferguson Earnshaw, P.Eng.
Mark Fewer, FEC (Hon.)
Jeremy Gabel, P.Eng.
Rosalie Hanlon, P.Eng.
Jim Landrigan, P.Eng.
Tina Maki, P.Eng.
Sandra Oickle

Matthew Oliver, P.Eng.
Mark Paulsen, P.Eng.
Stephanie Price, P.Eng.
Kem Singh, P.Eng.
Kate Sisk
Kyle Smith, P.Eng.

Engineers and Geoscientists BC  
Foundation Directors
Richard Bos, P.Eng.
Lindsay Bottomer, P.Geo., FGC, FEC (Hon.)
John Clague, P.Geo., FGC, FEC (Hon.)
Dick Fletcher, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Harry Lee, P.Eng.
Karen Savage, P.Eng., FEC
Simon So, P.Eng. (Retired)

Engineers and Geoscientists BC Foundation 
Scholarship Adjudication Committee
Corey Aurala, P.Eng.
Richard Bos, P.Eng.
Elisabeth Charmley, EIT
Dan Clowater, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
Daniela Constantinescu, P.Eng.
Simon Diemert, P.Eng.
Del Ferguson, P.Geo., Eng.L., FGC
Peter Friz, P.Geo., Eng.L., FGC
Rahul Hampaul, P.Eng.
Allen Heinrichs, P.Eng.
Paul Hughes, P.Eng.
Edward Lau, P.Eng.
Yi Li, P.Eng.
Jerry Lim, P.Eng., FEC
Bill Low, P.Eng.
Raegan Markel, P.Geo.
Fred Marquis, P.Eng.
Ryan Meyer, EIT
Jimmy Ni, P.Eng.
Nini Nytepchuk, P.Eng.
Jack Park, EIT/GIT
Kirk Richardson, EIT
Arvind Saraswat, P.Eng.
Mahilan Somasunderam, P.Eng.
Jonathan Verrett, P.Eng.
James Ye, P.Eng.

Engineers and Geoscientists in  
the Resource Sector Division
Matthew Campbell, P.Eng.
Chris Cole, P.Eng.
Lee Deslauriers, P.Eng.
Jaime Eggers, P.Geo.
Melissa Fietz, P.Eng.
Edward Folk, P.Eng.
Gino Fournier, P.Eng.
Kim Green, P.Geo.
Ross Hyam, P.Eng.
Maciej Kurowski, EIT
Jenn Sabean, P.Geo.

Environmental Professionals Division
Sarah Alloisio, P.Geo.
Elizabeth Ashworth, P.Eng.
Barry Azevedo, P.Eng.
Mamoud Bashi, P.Eng.
Bryan Brassington, P.Geo., FGC
Chris Ptak, EIT
James Spankie, P.Eng.
Maya Stano, P.Eng.

Executive Committee
Caroline Andrewes, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.), CPA, CMA
Harlan Kelly, P.Eng.
Ross Rettie, P.Eng. (Non-Practising), FEC, FGC (Hon.) 
Larry Spence, P.Eng.
Bob Stewart, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Katherina Tarnai-Lokhorst, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
John Turner, P.Ag. (Ret)
David Wells, JD

Experience Review Panel
Randy Alexander, P.Eng., FEC
Harold Davis, P.Eng. (Non-Practising), FEC 
Tom Haksi, P.Eng. (Non-Practising), FEC
Charles Laszlo, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
Peter Lawrence, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
John Lovatt, P.Eng.
John Markulin, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Tom Miller, P.Eng.
Maria Palencia, P.Eng.
Douglas Rhodes, P.Eng., FEC
George Shikaze, P.Eng. (Non-Practising), FEC 
Rolly Trenaman, P.Eng., FEC
Ray Turenne, P.Eng.
Ted Van der Gulik, P.Eng.
Chris Waltham, P.Eng.
Tom Wong, P.Eng., FEC

Experience Reviewers and Assessors
Armando Abello, P.Eng.
Hamid Afsharpay, P.Eng.
Richard Ahrend, P.Eng.
Mark Alev, P.Eng.
Randy Alexander, P.Eng., FEC
Michael Allan, P.Eng., FEC
Robert Allan, P.Eng., FEC
Richard Alpin, P.Eng., FEC
Paul Anderson, P.Eng., FEC
Bojan Andjelkovic, P.Eng.
Jeremy Araki, P.Eng.
Claudio Arato, P.Eng., FEC
Victor Armstrong, P.Eng.
Torsten Ball, P.Eng.
Eddie Ballarin, P.Eng.
Andy Bannon, P.Eng.
Cory Barker, P.Eng.
Darren Barlow, P.Eng.
Kevin Baskin, P.Eng.
Brian Beach, P.Eng.
Greg Beaveridge, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
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Christopher Stoner, P.Eng.
Nina Sutic-Bata, P.Eng.
Al Talaee, P.Eng.
Philip Tam, P.Eng.
Dave Tamblyn 
Yoshi Tanaka, P.Eng.
Inn Tang, P.Eng.
Katherina Tarnai-Lokhorst, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Gabe Taylor, P.Eng.
Fred Tejada, P.Geo.
Jun Terado, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
Jose Teres-Flores, P.Eng.
Viral Thakkar, P.Eng.
David Thomas, P.Geo.
George Thorpe, P.Eng.
Andrew Thrift, P.Eng.
Hua Tian, P.Eng.
Daniel Tillie, P.Eng.
Valentino Tjia, P.Eng.
Daniel Tober, P.Eng.
Jennifer Todd
Dragan Todorovic, P.Eng.
Ranislav Trapara, P.Eng.
Herbert Tsang, P.Eng.
Shaun Turner, P.Eng.
Vic Uloth, P.Eng., FEC
Hamid Vakili, P.Eng.
Daniela Vanderkwaak, P.Eng.
Malvin Velez, P.Eng.
Jeremy Vincent, P.Geo.
Michael Vint, P.Eng.
Martin Vogel, P.Eng.
Stephanie Voysey, P.Eng.
Michael Wadden, P.Eng.
Jorn Wang, P.Eng.
Steffanie Warriner, P.Eng.
Paul Wiebe, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
Christa Wilcock, P.Eng.
Art Williams, P.Eng.
Ed Wilson, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
Brian Wong, P.Eng.
Gary Wong, P.Eng.
Guan Kong Wong, P.Eng.
Vanessa Wong, P.Eng.
Trevor Wright, P.Eng.
Melody Xiao, P.Eng.
Jin Yang, P.Eng. 
Stuart Yanow, P.Eng.
Reza Yassan, P.Eng.
Rostam Yazdani-Mehdiabadi, P.Eng. (Retired)
Noboru Yonemitsu, P.Eng.
Mario Zapata Pelaez, P.Eng.

Wayne Zhan, P.Eng.
Xiaojie Zhang, P.Eng.
Claudia Zuge, P.Eng.  

Municipal Engineers Division
Sara Brodie, P.Eng.
James Chandler, P.Eng.
Robert Hicks, P.Eng.
Kara Jefford, P.Eng.
Chalys Joseph, P.Eng.
Doug Louie, P.Eng.
Harley Machielse, P.Eng.
Michelle Mahovlich, P.Eng./P.Geo.
Amer Nawaz, P.Eng.
Scott Neuman, P.Eng.
Alan Newcombe, P.Eng.
Jennifer Peters, P.Eng.
Jude Pillainayagam, P.Eng., FEC
Kimberley Wong, P.Eng.

Nomination and Election Advisory Group
Caroline Andrewes, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.), CPA, CMA
Sheryl Staub-French, P.Eng.
David Wells, JD
Michael Wrinch, P.Eng.

Nominating Committee
Vadim Airiants, P.Eng.
Caroline Andrewes, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.), CPA, CMA
Emily Cheung, P.Eng., FEC
Stella Chiu, P.Eng.
Eric Constantinescu, P.Eng.
Peter Coxon, P.Eng.
Frank Denton, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Hamid Ghanbari, P.Eng.
Jeff Holm, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Garth Kirkham, P.Geo., FGC
Mahmoud Mahmoud, P.Eng., FEC
Paul Meyer, P.Eng., FEC
Greg Reid, P.Eng./P.Geo., FEC, FGC
Karen Savage, P.Eng., FEC
Tim Smith, P.Geo., Eng.L., FGC, FEC (Hon.)
Bob Stewart, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Barbara Thomas, P.Eng.
Selena Wilson, P.Eng.
Jeremy Zandbergen, P.Eng.

Northern Branch
Eric Constantinescu, P.Eng.
Kevin Ilott, P.Eng.
Jamie Malthus, P.Eng.
Rhonda Mellafont, P.Geo.
Andrew Roth, P.Eng.
Leila Tootchi Fatidehi, P.Eng.
Gordon Weary, P.Geo.

Okanagan Branch
Pam Ades, P.Eng.
James Barr, P.Geo.
Helene Desrosiers, P.Eng.
Martin Lindquist, P.Eng.
Felix Menu, P.Eng.
Craig Merkl, P.Eng.
Craig Nichol, P.Geo.
Marie O’Brien, EIT
Stephen O’Leary, P.Eng.
Keith Recsky, P.Eng.
Ahmad Rteil, P.Eng.
Anjuman Shahriar, P.Eng.
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Peace River Branch
Momotaj Aghdasi, P.Eng.
Doug Barry, P.Eng., FEC
Scott Byar, P.Eng.
Christopher Flury, P.Eng.
Abhishek Kumar, EIT
Chang Liu, EIT
Ross Luo, P.Eng.
Alma Medina, P.Eng.
Steve Rainey, P.Eng.
Progga Roy, EIT
Ray Stafford, P.Eng.
Niesen Xu, EIT
Al Zackodnik, P.Eng.
Tamara Zagumenna, P.Eng.

Practice Review Committee
Julien Fagnan, P.Eng.
Hugh Fraser, P.Eng., FEC
Donald Gillespie, P.Eng.
Sharlie Huffman, P.Eng., FEC
Vijay Kallur, P.Eng., FEC
Randall Kovacs, P.Eng., FEC
Alex McGowan, P.Eng.
George Melo, P.Eng., FEC
Ken Newbert, P.Eng.

Professional Practice Committee
Catherine Hickson, P.Geo., FGC
Saqib Khan, P.Eng.
Lianna Mah, P.Eng., FEC
David Melville, P.Geo.
Karen Savage, P.Eng., FEC
Larry Spence, P.Eng.
Kevin Turner, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Met Ulker, P.Eng., FEC

Registration Committee
Alan Andison, BA, LLB
Claudio Arato, P.Eng., FEC
Doug Barry, P.Eng., FEC
Neil Brazier, P.Eng., FEC
Shiloh Carlson, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Martin Fandrich, P.Eng., FEC
David Harvey, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Catherine Hickson, P.Geo., FGC
Philippe Kruchten, P.Eng., FEC
Brock Nanson, P.Eng.
Nathan Ozog, P.Eng., FEC
Glenn Pellegrin, P.Eng., FEC
Nimal Rajapakse, P.Eng.
Kevin Riederer, P.Eng.
David Wells, JD

Registration Interviewers
Bandula Abeysundara, P.Eng.
Narayan Abhyankar, P.Eng./P.Geo., FEC, FGC
Paul Adams, P.Eng., FEC
Davor Ajdukovic, P.Eng.
Mark Alev, P.Eng.
Hugh Alley, P.Eng., FEC
Mick Andic, P.Eng., FEC
Gordon Apperley, P.Eng., FEC
Robert Armour, P.Eng., FEC
Andres Baez Rodriguez, P.Eng.
Burhan Bagran, P.Eng.
Andrew Baker, P.Eng.
Michael Balasescu, P.Eng.

John Balfour, P.Eng., FEC
George Barclay, P.Eng.
Adriana Bartoli de Alonso, P.Eng.
Rob Barton, P.Eng.
Mike Belfry, P.Eng., FEC
Ken Bell, P.Eng., FEC
Mike Belter, P.Eng.
Yariv Ben-Shooshan, P.Eng.
Dmytro Beresnev, P.Eng.
Gruja Blagojevic, P.Eng., FEC
James Blake, P.Eng.
Alexei Bobyrev, P.Eng.
Lindsay Bottomer, P.Geo., FGC, FEC (Hon.)
Anoush Bozorgebrahimi, P.Eng.
Ahren Britton, P.Eng.
Sean Brophy, P.Eng., FEC
Robin Brown, P.Eng., FEC
Steve Brown, P.Eng.
Lili Bu, P.Eng., FEC
Calum Buchan, P.Eng., FEC
Vern Buchholz, P.Eng. (Retired)
Dick Butler, P.Eng., FEC
Alex Camacho, P.Eng.
Rob Campbell, P.Eng., FEC
John Carter, P.Eng.
Pierre Castro, P.Eng.
Andrew Chad, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
David Chan, P.Eng.
Curtis Chang, P.Eng.
Daniel Chen, P.Eng., FEC
Gary Chen, P.Eng.
Li Sheng Chen, P.Eng.
Patrick Cheng, P.Eng., FEC
Phoebe Cheung, P.Eng., FEC
Rick Cheung, P.Eng., FEC
Alan Chiang, P.Eng.
Raymond Chin, P.Eng.
Albert Chow, P.Eng.
Celestine Chow, P.Eng., FEC
George Chow, P.Eng., FEC
Terry Chow, P.Eng.
Shamsul Chowdhury, P.Eng.
Marius Ciornei, P.Eng.
Bruce Clark, P.Eng., FEC
Matthew Clark, P.Eng.
Gabriel Cojocaru, P.Eng., FEC
Reto Corfu, P.Eng.
Eduard Andrei Cvaci, P.Eng.
Marcus Dell, P.Eng., FEC
Bruce Der, P.Eng., FEC
Yuming Ding, P.Eng.
Gordon Doerksen, P.Eng.
Bruce Downing, P.Geo., FGC, FEC (Hon.)
Tom Drackett, P.Eng.
Don Ehrenholz, P.Eng., FEC
Tarek El-Amoury, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Clifford Eng, P.Eng., FEC
Jim Erickson, P.Eng., FEC
Stephen Fang, P.Eng.
Amr Fathalla, P.Eng.
Keith Fenton, P.Eng., FEC
Dawn Flotten, P.Eng.
Kumar Fonseka, P.Eng.
Behzad Foroughi, P.Eng.
Will Gaherty, P.Eng., FEC
Livio Gambone, P.Eng., FEC
Paolo Gazzarrini, P.Eng., FEC
Mihai Georgescu, P.Eng., FEC

Farmand Ghafari, P.Eng., FEC
Bob Gill, P.Eng., FEC
Henri Giovanetti, P.Eng.
Gustavo Gomes Gonzaga, P.Eng.
Victor Goncalves, P.Eng., FEC
Blain Good, P.Eng./P.Geo., FEC, FGC
Dana Grecov, P.Eng., FEC
Brian Griffin, P.Eng., FEC
Mark Grindlay, P.Eng., FEC
Rob Hadden, P.Eng.
David Hall, P.Eng.
Gary Hamata, P.Eng., FEC
Bruce Hamersley, P.Eng., FEC
Simon Handelsman, P.Eng.
Darryl Hansen, P.Eng., FEC
Greg Harms, P.Eng., FEC
Charlie Harrison, P.Eng.
Desmond Hartford, P.Eng., FEC
Greg Hatton, P.Eng.
Paul Henderson, P.Eng.
Jens Henriksen, P.Eng., FEC
Rick Heuft, P.Eng., FEC
Carolyn Hillard, P.Eng.
David Hislop, P.Eng., FEC
Patrick Ho, P.Eng., FEC
John Holland, P.Eng., FEC
Azadeh Homami, P.Eng.
Paul Hoo, P.Eng., FEC
Paul Hosford, P.Eng.
Jermin Hsieh, P.Eng.
Kai Hui, P.Eng.
Sean Ireton, P.Eng.
Robert Ito, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Derk Jansen, P.Eng.
Mohammadreza Jarollahi, P.Eng.
Iordan Jelescu Bodos, P.Eng.
Jack Jiao, P.Eng., FEC
Lynn Johnson, P.Eng., FEC
Philip Johnson, P.Eng.
Scott Jones, P.Eng.
Dharam Kajal, P.Eng.
Foad Kasiri, P.Eng., FEC
Randa Khalil, P.Eng., FEC
Saqib Khan, P.Eng.
John Kiernan, P.Eng., FEC
Woo Soo Kim, P.Eng.
Garth Kirkham, P.Geo., FGC
Matt Kokan, P.Eng., FEC
Eugene Kowch, P.Eng., FEC
Inna Kroogman, P.Eng.
Philippe Kruchten, P.Eng., FEC
Anil Kumar, P.Eng. (Non-Practising), FEC
Bengul Kurtar, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
Chris Kwong, P.Eng., FEC
Alan Lai, P.Eng.
Ranee Lai, P.Eng.
Jim Laidlaw, P.Eng.
Patricia Larga, P.Eng.
Bernard Laval, P.Eng.
Mark Lawton, P.Eng., FEC
Doru Lazar, P.Eng.
Frid Lederer, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
David Lee, P.Eng.
Harry Lee
Jack Lee, P.Eng., FEC
John Lee, P.Eng., FEC
Kelvin Lee, P.Eng.
Ken-Beck Lee, P.Eng., FEC

Kyoung Sik Lee, P.Eng., FEC
Paul Lee, P.Eng., FEC
Greg Lehoux, P.Eng.
Jonathan Leung, P.Eng.
Thomas Leung, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Kok Li, P.Eng., FEC
Simon Li, P.Eng., FEC
Vincent Li, P.Eng., FEC
Clark Lim, P.Eng.
Jerry Lim, P.Eng., FEC
Charles Liu, P.Eng.
Tom Lively, P.Eng., FEC
Geoff Locke, P.Eng.
Scott Loptson, P.Eng.
Tom Louie
Ting Lu, P.Eng.
Jerry Lum, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Kevin Lynch, P.Eng.
Siu Ma, P.Eng.
Stan Ma, P.Eng.
Duncan Macdonald, P.Eng.
Shail Mahanti, P.Eng. (Retired), FEC
Mahmoud Mahmoud, P.Eng., FEC
Masoud Maleki, P.Eng.
Sunny Mangat, P.Eng.
David Manuel, P.Eng.
Kai Mark, P.Eng.
David Marriott, P.Eng., FEC
Kenneth Maycock, P.Eng. (Non-Practising), FEC 
Piotr Mazur, P.Eng.
Shawn McCann, P.Eng.
Geoff McDonell, P.Eng.
Glenn McDonnell, P.Eng., FEC
Behzad Mehrabadi, P.Eng., FEC
Colin Meldrum, P.Eng., FEC
Seyed-Nasiraldin Mirlohi-Falavarjani, P.Eng.
Ronald Mitchell, P.Eng., FEC
Tom Morrison, P.Eng., FEC
Derek Muggeridge, P.Eng.
Hans Muhlert, P.Eng., FEC
Kenneth Mui, P.Eng.
Chris Mulder, P.Eng.
Phil Mundy, P.Eng.
Matt Murdoch, P.Eng.
Godfrey Nash, P.Eng.
Kathy Navab, P.Eng.
Jim Neill, P.Eng., FEC
Jesse Neri, P.Eng.
Stefan Neville, P.Eng.
Ivo Nikolic, P.Eng.
John Nunn, P.Eng., FEC
Gerry O’Hara, P.Eng., FEC
Oleg Orlovskyy, P.Eng.
Josef Otto, P.Eng., FEC
Kemal Ozgur, P.Eng.
Christopher Page, P.Eng., FEC
Sandro Papile, P.Eng.
Carol Park, P.Eng.
Linda Parkinson, P.Eng.
Leslie Peer, P.Eng., FEC
Scott Pellow, P.Eng., FEC
Campbell Perry, P.Eng. (Retired), FEC 
Leonard Pianalto, P.Eng., FEC
Jude Pillainayagam, P.Eng., FEC
Farya Pirbazari, P.Eng.
George Plant, P.Eng., FEC
Kevin Plimbley, P.Eng.
Marian Podlovsky, P.Eng., FEC

Stefan Popovici, P.Eng., FEC
Terence Portugal, P.Eng.
Alen Postolka, P.Eng., FEC
Ronald Pousette, P.Eng. (Non-Practising), FEC 
Zlatko Puljic, P.Eng.
Karthik Ram, P.Eng.
Zoe Razavi, P.Eng.
Irfan Rehmanji, P.Eng., FEC
Paul Remillard, P.Eng., FEC
Tom Ren, P.Eng.
Thomas Ries, P.Eng., FEC
Grant Ritchie, P.Eng. (Non-Practising), FEC 
Lana Ritter, P.Eng.
Alec Rivers-Bowerman, P.Eng., FEC
William Robinson, P.Eng., FEC
Ricardo Rojas, P.Eng., FEC
Ian Rokeby, P.Eng., FEC
Marianne Rosted, P.Eng., P.Geo.
Bern Roy, P.Eng., FEC
Reza Sahraei, P.Eng.
Derek Sakamoto, P.Eng.
Philip Salt, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
Hamid Samani, P.Eng., FEC
Felix San, P.Eng.
Ronald Sawatzky, P.Eng., FEC
Norman Schmidt, P.Eng., FEC
Johannes Scholte, P.Eng. (Retired), FEC
Ron Schroeder, P.Eng. (Non-Practising), FEC
Joel Schwartz, P.Eng., FEC
Malcolm Scoble, P.Eng.
John Scott, P.Eng., FEC
Stephen Se, P.Eng.
Walter Segsworth, P.Eng., FEC
Ramin Seifi, P.Eng., FEC
Jack Sekhon, P.Eng., FEC
David Semczyszyn, P.Eng., FEC
Sandy Sethi, P.Eng.
Sid Siddiqui, P.Eng., FEC
Ian Simpson, P.Eng., FEC
Scott Sinclair, P.Eng.
Glen Singleton, P.Geo. (Retired), FGC, FEC (Hon.) 
Frank So, P.Eng.
Peter Stacey, P.Eng., FEC
Tom Stegemann, P.Eng.
Garry Stevenson, P.Eng./P.Geo., FGC
Christopher Storer, P.Eng.
Tom Stubens, P.Eng.
Bob Suggitt, P.Eng.
Simon Sukstorf, P.Eng.
Sukumar Sukumar, P.Eng., FEC
Afzal Suleman, P.Eng.
Worapol Taksinrote, P.Eng.
Jude Talbot, P.Eng., FEC
Desi Thomas, P.Eng., FEC
Mike Thompson, P.Eng., FEC
Jim Tinson, P.Eng., FEC
Donald Tolfree, P.Eng.
Jose Torrecampo III, P.Eng.
Ruben Ugarte, P.Eng., FEC
Wendell Uglene, P.Eng.
Met Ulker, P.Eng., FEC
Ramakrishnan Vinnakota, P.Eng., FEC
Gary Vlieg, P.Eng., FEC
John Wallace, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Martina Wan, P.Eng.
Jeroen Wauters, P.Eng.
Iain Weir-Jones, P.Eng.
Willa Wen, P.Eng., FEC

Harvey West, P.Eng., FEC
Tim Whalen, P.Eng.
Brad White, P.Eng.
Mike Williams, P.Eng., FEC
Henry Wong, P.Eng.
Jermyn Wong, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Peter Wong, P.Eng.
Peter Wong, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
Sherman Wong, P.Eng., FEC
John Woodcock, P.Eng.
Colin Wright, P.Eng., FEC
Kenneth Wright, P.Eng. (Non-Practising), FEC
David Wu, P.Eng., FEC
Michael Wu, P.Eng., FEC
Mike Wu, P.Eng.
Henry Wulkan, P.Eng. (Retired), FEC
Mark Xu, P.Eng., FEC
Gary Yang, P.Eng.
Qing Yao, P.Eng.
Gholam Yavari, P.Eng. (Non-Practising), FEC
Rodney Yeoh, P.Eng.
Lawrence Yeung, P.Eng.
Matthew Yim, P.Eng.
Ken Yip, P.Eng., FEC
Matthew Younger, P.Eng.
Fernando Zarate Lopez, P.Eng.
Zarbi Zarbi, P.Eng.
Sany Zein, P.Eng., FEC
Wayne Zhan, P.Eng.
Daming Zhao, P.Eng.
Wojtek Ziemnicki, P.Eng.

Richmond/Delta Branch
Fardin Barekat, EIT
Christopher Chan, EIT
Edward Cheung, P.Eng.
Phillip Chow, P.Eng.
Christopher David, EIT
Jiehui Dong, EIT
Hamid Ghanbari, P.Eng.
Allen Heinrichs, P.Eng.
Jessica Leung, P.Eng.
Earl Masarsky, P.Geo.
Ron McOuat, P.Eng.
Rozina Merchant, P.Eng.
Nima Moazen Chaharsoughi, P.Eng.
Abbas Nikbakht, EIT
Mohsen Seraj, P.Eng.
Wanying Shi, EIT
Cari Wells, P.Eng.
Yue Zhou, EIT

Science Games Steering Committee
Thomas Clay-Smith
Simon Diemert, P.Eng.
Sze Kong, P.Eng.
Faisal Mirza, P.Eng.
Sonya Parsad, GIT
Kevin Preston, P.Eng.
Sarah Prior, EIT
Kirk Richardson, EIT

Sea-to-Sky Branch
Vadim Airiants, P.Eng.
Bahareh Ardalan, P.Eng.
Jim Branson, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
Cristian Ciuperca, P.Eng.
Dean Dugas, P.Eng.
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Geoff Dyer, P.Eng.
Saeid Faghih, P.Eng.
Mihai Georgescu, P.Eng., FEC
Mahsa Keyvani, EIT
Matthew King, P.Eng.
Wesley Lawrence, EIT
Brent Lyon, P.Eng.
Mahmoud Mahmoud, P.Eng., FEC
Piotr Mazur, P.Eng.
Arash Mohammadian-Khezerlou, P.Eng.
John Morgan, P.Eng., FEC
Nima Najafi, P.Eng.
Ghazal Nayyeri, EIT
Jenny Qi, P.Eng.
Peter Reid, P.Eng.
Horst Unger, P.Eng., FEC
Reza Zandi, P.Eng.

South Central Branch
Pattie Amison, P.Geo.
Bryan Bale, P.Eng.
Graham Dick, P.Eng.
Deanna Erickson, EIT
Normand Fortier, P.Eng.
Jeff Holm, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Anthony McGill, P.Eng.
Travis Pahl, P.Eng.
Greg Reid, P.Eng./P.Geo., FEC, FGC
Jessica Steeves, P.Eng.
Catherine Tatarniuk, P.Eng.
Andrew Watson, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.

Standing Awards Committee
Tomer Curiel, P.Eng., FEC
Rebecca Fan, P.Eng.
Brian Guy, P.Geo.
David Harvey, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Donald Mavinic, P.Eng., FEC
Jim McEwen, P.Eng.
Cheryl Nelms, P.Eng.
Carol Park, P.Eng.
Kevin Riederer, P.Eng.
Sabina Russell, P.Eng.

Structural Qualifications Board
Leon Bell, P.Eng., FEC
David Harvey, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Patrick Lam, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Kitty Leung, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Bob Neville, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
John Pao, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Rob Quiring, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Patrick Shek, P.Eng., FEC
John Wallace, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Greg Wylie, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC

Sustainability Committee
Kerly Acosta Salgado, P.Eng.
Christine Bieber, P.Geo.
Kel Coulson, P.Eng.
Vijay Kallur, P.Eng., FEC
Geoff Karcher, P.Eng.
Josh Kelly, EIT
Nelson Lee, P.Eng.
Mahmoud Mahmoud, P.Eng., FEC
Ryan O’Grady, P.Eng.
Pascal Poudenx, P.Eng.
Mukesh Sharma, P.Eng.
Dana Zheng, P.Eng.

Task Force on Limited Licences  
for Building Enclosure Engineering
Joshua Collins, P.Eng.
Philip Douglas Alexander Johnson, P.Eng.
Mark Lawton, P.Eng., FEC
Nathan Ozog, P.Eng., FEC
Leslie Peer, P.Eng., FEC
Kevin Riederer, P.Eng.
Joel Schwartz, P.Eng., FEC

Seismic Technical Review Board
Ron DeVall, P.Eng., FEC
Liam Finn, P.Eng.
Blair Gohl, P.Eng.
Sebastian Guerrero, P.Eng.
Robert Hall, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Bob Hanson, PE
Tony Horlor, P.Eng.
Walter Janzen, P.Eng., FEC
Tanja Kalamar, P.Eng.
Peter Kiddie, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Patrick Lam, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Clint Low, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Ke Jian Ma, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Kosta Marcakis, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Richard Mastschuch, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Mike Mehrain, SE
Andy Mill, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Farzad Naeim, SE, ESQ
Ernest Naesgaard, P.Eng., FEC
Chris Peterson, P.Eng.
Mark Porter, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Mehrak Razavi, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Lee Rowley, P.Eng.
Walid Salman, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
John Sherstobitoff, P.Eng.
Jim Shuttleworth, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Thor Tandy, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Graham Taylor, P.Eng.
Carlos Ventura Zamora, P.Eng., FEC
John Wallace, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Tim White, P.Eng.
Adrian Wightman, P.Eng.
Shelly Zhao, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.

Technical Reviewers
Ian Adam, P.Eng.
Richard Alpin, P.Eng., FEC
Jeremy Araki, P.Eng.
Rob Arden, P.Eng.
Leon Bell, P.Eng., FEC
Donald Bergman, P.Eng.
Gruja Blagojevic, P.Eng., FEC
Andrew Boettcher, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Darryl Bowers, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Darryl Brizan, P.Eng.
Pierre-Michel Busque, P.Eng.
Gerry Buydens, P.Eng., FEC
Yiu Chan, P.Eng. (Retired)
Bob Charlton, P.Eng., FEC
Celestine Chow, P.Eng., FEC
Allan Dakin, P.Eng., FEC
Marcus Dell, P.Eng., FEC
Rob Dickin, P.Geo., FGC, FEC (Hon.)
Bruce Downing, P.Geo., FGC, FEC (Hon.)
Victor Galay, P.Eng.
Irfan Gehlen, P.Eng.
Ian Hamann, P.Eng.
Andrew Harmsworth, P.Eng., FEC

Shelley Higman, P.Eng./P.Geo., FEC, FGC
Glynnis Horel, P.Eng., FEC
Ronald Jordens, P.Eng.
Brian LaCas, P.Eng., FEC
Patrick Lam, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Brian Lee, P.Eng.
Tim Leggett, P.Eng.
Dejan Lenasi, P.Eng.
David Little, P.Eng.
Shail Mahanti, P.Eng. (Retired), FEC
Geoff McDonell, P.Eng.
Ron McMurtrie, P.Eng.
Eric McQuarrie, P.Eng.,P.Geo.
Brian Mountford
Jim Mutrie, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
Jim Neill, P.Eng., FEC
Micheal O’Keeffe, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
John Pao, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Leonard Pianalto, P.Eng., FEC
Marian Podlovsky, P.Eng., FEC
Graham Rawlings, EGNP
Greg Reid, P.Eng./P.Geo., FEC, FGC
James Robertson, P.Geo., FGC, FEC (Hon.)
Rick Rodman, P.Eng.
Peter Rufenacht, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
Andrew Rushforth, P.Eng.
David Scouten, P.Eng.
Sid Siddiqui, P.Eng., FEC
Greg Smith, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Phil Sunderland, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Ron Thompson, P.Eng.
Sid Tsang, P.Geo.
Kevin Turner, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Calvin VanBuskirk, P.Eng./P.Geo., FEC, FGC
Carlos Ventura Zamora, P.Eng., FEC
John Wallace, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Gerry Weiler, P.Eng., FEC
Michael Wilson, P.Eng.
Terry Wong, P.Eng.
Chichao Yao, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Mustapha Zergoun, P.Eng.

Temporary Works Committee
Stefan Alexander, P.Eng.
Desimir Begovic, P.Eng.
Sean Dingley, P.Eng.
Samir Eidnani, P.Eng.
Nick Greuter, P.Eng.
Dylan Lee, P.Eng.
Li Ma, P.Eng.
Sally Mitry, P.Eng., FEC
Renata Ostrovska, P.Eng.
Suresh Shrestha, P.Eng.
Raveen Singh, P.Eng.
Val Varga, P.Eng.

Tri-City Branch
Ovidiu Almasan, P.Eng.
Hussien Berisso, EIT
Lee Boyden, EIT
Anett Briggs, P.Geo.
Karen Chan, P.Eng.
Stella Chiu, P.Eng.
Doru Cornescu, P.Eng.
Jing Du, P.Eng.
Kelly Fawcett, EIT
Cam Finnigan, P.Eng.
Jane Guo, P.Eng.
Molly Hou, P.Eng.

Lenka Kral, P.Eng.
Meghan Lui, EIT
Chrystal MacKinnon, P.Geo.
Dan Meldrum, P.Geo.
Michael Meslin, EIT
Mitch Mivehchi, P.Eng.
Mark Porter, P.Eng., Struct.Eng., FEC
Michael Qiu, P.Eng.
Alton Radan, EIT
Bob Stewart, P.Eng., FEC, FGC (Hon.)
Inn Tang, P.Eng.
Allison Westin, GIT

Vancouver Branch
Guhan Chendur Nathan, EIT
Phillip Chow, P.Eng.
Nilufar Islam, P.Eng.
Arash Mohammadian-Khezerlou, P.Eng.
Travis Nguyen, EIT
Abbas Nikbakht, EIT
Christina Noel, EIT
Nathan Ozog, P.Eng., FEC
Malharkumar Patel, EIT
Soledad Ronco, EIT
Maggie Sheu, P.Eng.
Yinan Shi, EIT
Gwenda Sulem, P.Eng.
Nawoong Yoon, EIT
Yiran Zhang

Vancouver Island Branch
Chris Bandy, EIT
Tyler Boyer, EIT
Maya Charnell, P.Eng.
Brian Dick, Eng.L.
Kevin Dougan, P.Eng.
Chris Durupt, P.Eng.
Fritz Fernandez, P.Eng.
Samantha Hackett, P.Eng.
Melissa Heidema, P.Eng.
Jarrod Koster, P.Eng.

Celina Kwasniak, P.Eng.
Hal Martyn, P.Eng.
Ma Carmina Pascual, EIT
Lee Rowley, P.Eng.
Patrick Ryan, P.Eng.
Skafti Sinclair, P.Eng.
Shannon Summersides, EIT
Barbara Thomas, P.Eng.
Peter Wang, EIT
Craig Work, P.Eng.

Vancouver Urban Design Panel
Grant Newfield, P.Eng., Struct.Eng.
Marie-France Venneri, P.Eng.
Matthew Younger, P.Eng.

Victoria Branch
Ryan Brabander, P.Eng.
Bridget Cassidy, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
Clara Chin, EIT
Marcel Gingras, P.Eng.
Jake Grant, EIT
Faisal Hamood, P.Eng.
Naomi Hodge, P.Eng.
Stephen Lyon, EIT
Ed Lyons, P.Geo.
Laura Malowaniec, P.Eng.
Deyanira Mendoza Dominguez, P.Eng.
Deirdre Moran, EIT
Dale Puskas, P.Eng.
Mary Rathbone, P.Eng.
Christine Reimer, GIT
Perla Rodulfo Gomez, EIT
Daphne Sidaway-Wolf, P.Eng.
Leonhard Spalteholz
Tyler Thompson, P.Eng.

West Kootenay Branch
Tanzim Alam, EIT
Teresa Cutler, EIT
Tom de Groot, P.Eng.

Stephanie Dupont, P.Eng.
Michelle Fletcher, P.Eng.
Clifford Howard, P.Eng.
Stefan Humphries, P.Geo.
Alexander Love, P.Eng.
Samuel Lyster, P.Eng.
Alison MacLeod, P.Eng.
Dale Norman, P.Eng.
Clare North, P.Geo.
Jasmine Oliver, P.Eng.
Lee Redstone, P.Eng.
Waseem Saeed, P.Eng.
Mark Sirges, P.Eng., FEC
John Stephens, P.Eng.
Elroy Switlishoff, P.Eng., FEC

Women in Engineering  
and Geoscience Division
Katie Au, P.Eng.
Jaclyn Bowman, P.Eng.
Nicole Brisson, EIT
Bridget Cassidy, P.Eng. (Non-Practising)
Joanne Chow
Donna Denny, P.Eng.
Samira Harris, P.Eng.
Karla Herrera Palmeros, EIT
Golara Javadi, EIT
Azadeh Koohzare, P.Eng.
Alice Liang, P.Eng.
Meghan Lui, EIT
Michelle McLarty, P.Eng.
Kelly McLean, P.Eng.
Katherine Miller, EIT
Krupal Pal, P.Eng.
Sarah Prior, EIT
Kati Tamashiro Tairaku, P.Eng.
Selina Tribe, P.Geo.
Avy Woo, P.Eng.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Association of Professional Engineers  

and Geoscientists of the Province of British Columbia

NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019

INDEPENDENT  
AUDITOR’S REPORT

September 13, 2019

To the Members of The Association of Professional Engineers  
and Geoscientists of the Province of British Columbia

RESPONSIBILITIES OF 
MANAGEMENT AND THOSE 
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 
FOR THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
Management is responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in accordance 
with Canadian accounting standards 
for not-for-profit organizations, and for 
such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, 
management is responsible for 
assessing the Association’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the 
Association or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance 
are responsible for overseeing the 
Association’s financial reporting process.

OUR OPINION
In our opinion, the accompanying 
financial statements present 
fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of The Association 
of Professional Engineers and 
Geoscientists of the Province of British 
Columbia (the Association) as at 
June 30, 2019 and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with 
Canadian accounting standards for  
not-for-profit organizations.

What we have audited
The Association’s financial statements 
comprise:

•	 �The non-consolidated balance sheet 
as at June 30, 2019;

•	 �the non-consolidated statement of 
revenue and expenses for the year 
then ended;

•	 �the non-consolidated statement of 
changes in net assets for the year 
then ended;

•	� the non-consolidated statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended; and

•	 �the notes to the financial statements, 
which include a summary of 
significant accounting policies.

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted 
auditing standards. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities 
for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence  
we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Association 
in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements in 
Canada. We have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements.

2018/2019 ANNUAL REPORT

34

2018/2019 ANNUAL REPORT

35 



•	 �Evaluate the overall presentation, 
structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

•	 �Obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence regarding the financial 
information of the entities or 
business activities within the 
Association to express an opinion 
on the financial statements. We 
are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of 
the group audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged 
with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants 
 
Vancouver, British Columbia 
September 13, 2019

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted 
auditing standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance  
with Canadian generally accepted 
auditing standards, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

•	 �Identify and assess the risks of 
material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.

•	 �Obtain an understanding of internal 
control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Association’s internal control.

•	 �Evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

•	 �Conclude on the appropriateness 
of management’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the 
Association’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may 
cause the Association to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

NON-CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at June 30, 2019 
 
			   2019	 2018
			   $	 $
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (note 3)	 894,554	 1,292,447
Short-term investments (note 4)	 13,046,946	 10,497,346
Interest receivable	 68,024	 40,270
Accounts receivable (note 5)	 768,857	 605,423
Prepaid expenses	 296,519	 384,307
Inventory 	 20,093	 21,655
 			   15,094,993	 12,841,448 

Intangible assets (note 6)	 248,915	 357,171	
Property and equipment (note 7)	 3,023,134	 3,148,485
Investments (note 4)	 97,300	 650,113
			   18,464,342	 16,997,217

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	 1,016,550	 1,382,052
Deferred revenue (note 8)	 1,578,722	 1,092,196
Deferred fees (note 9)	 6,156,858	 5,306,144
			   8,752,130	 7,780,392

Net assets (note 2)
General fund	
	 Invested in property and equipment and intangible assets	 3,272,049	 3,505,655
	 Operating	 5,150,013	 4,766,020
Property, equipment and systems replacement fund	 790,150	 445,150
Legal and insurance fund	 500,000	 500,000
			   9,712,212	 9,216,825
			   18,464,342	 16,997,217

Commitments (note 10)
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NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES
For the year ended June 30, 2019

			   2019	 2018
			   $	 $
REVENUE
Fees
	 Annual membership fees	 11,514,859	 10,486,007
	 Application, registration and certification fees	 1,649,358	 1,304,513
	 Professional and academic examinations	 569,484	 505,862
		  13,733,701	 12,296,382
Other revenue
Affinity programs	 413,959	 409,029
Annual conference	 340,935	 301,915
Grant and project administration	 1,623,879	 1,139,075
Innovation magazine and other advertising	 573,474	 530,419
Investment income	 198,432	 104,068
Miscellaneous (note14)	 390,906	 301,046
Organization quality management	 248,470	 209,738
Professional development	 1,002,826	 1,077,256
		  4,792,881	 4,072,546
Total revenue	 18,526,582	 16,368,928

EXPENSES
Advertising	 53,191	 276,503
Annual conference – facilities and meals	 188,645	 166,025
Contract and consulting services	 2,016,463	 1,807,615
Contract and consulting services on grants	 1,573,648	 872,965
Engineers Canada assessment	 312,411	 299,755
Examinations and examination books	 403,133	 360,217
Geoscientists Canada assessment	 67,358	 67,705
Grants and awards	 96,834	 100,292
Innovation magazine printing	 106,095	 90,651
Legal		  686,425	 607,952
Meetings, seminar room rentals and special events	 569,622	 462,302
Office, general and miscellaneous (note 15)	 966,246	 1,022,257
Premises and operating costs	 374,120	 479,407
Printing, publication and distribution costs	 370,918	 384,496
Salaries and employee benefits	 9,000,635	 7,870,044
Secondary professional liability insurance premiums	 151,245	 143,775
Telecommunications	 74,332	 67,786
Travel		  432,109	 390,070
Total expenses before amortization	 17,443,430	 15,469,817
Excess of revenue over expenses before amortization	 1,083,152	 899,111
Amortization
Intangible assets	 185,003	 219,843
Property and equipment	 402,762	 398,011
Total amortization	 587,765	 617,854
Excess of revenue over expenses for the year	 495,387	 281,257

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these non-consolidated financial statements.  

NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF changes in net assets
For the year ended June 30, 2019 
 
	 					     2019	    2018

	 General Fund

	 Invested in		  Property,
	 property and		  equipment		
	 equipment		  and systems	 Legal and				  
	 and intangible		  replacement	 insurance				  
	 assets	 Operating	 fund	 fund	 Total	 Total

	 $	 $	 $	 $	 $	 $

Net assets – Beginning of year		  3,505,655	 4,766,020	 445,150	 500,000	 9,216,825	 8,935,568

Excess of revenue over expenses		
	 for the year	 	 (587,765) (1)	 1,083,152 (2)	 -	 -	 495,387	 281,257	

Investment in intangible assets		  76,747	 (76,747) (3)	 -	 -	 -	 -
Investment in property and			   		
	 equipment		  277,412	 (277,412)	 -	 -	 -	 -

Transfer to property,			   		   
	 equipment and systems
	 replacement fund		  -	 (345,000)	 345,000	 - 	 -	 -

Net assets – End of year		  3,272,049	 5,150,013	 790,150	 500,000	 9,712,212	 9,216,825

Note:

(1)	 Amortization for the year
(2)	 Excess of revenue over expenses before amortization, building repairs and maintenance
(3)	 To fund intangible assets and property and equipment purchases
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these non-consolidated financial statements.  
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NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

			   2019	 2018
			   $	 $
Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Excess of revenue over expenses for the year	 495,387	 281,257
Items not affecting cash – amortization of property and equipment	 587,765	 617,854
			   1,083,152	 899,111
Change in working capital accounts	 869,900	 750,321
			   1,953,052	 1,649,432

Investing activities
Investment in intangible assets	 (76,747)	 (257,478)
Investment in property and equipment	 (277,412)	 (168,978)
Proceeds on short-term investments and investments 	 22,290,258	 19,421,819
Purchase of short-term investments and investments 	 (24,287,045)	 (20,701,253)
			   (2,350,946)	 (1,705,890)

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents	 (397,894)	 (56,458)
Cash and cash equivalents – Beginning of year	 1,292,447	 1,348,905
Cash and cash equivalents – End of year	 894,553	 1,292,447

Supplementary information
Change in working capital accounts	
	 Accounts receivable	 (163,434)	 (249,173)
	 Interest receivable	 (27,754)	 (23,136)
	 Prepaid expenses	 87,788	 36,581
	 Inventory	 1,562	 4,464
	 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	 (365,502)	 275,964
	 Deferred fees	 850,714	 216,126
	 Deferred revenue	 486,526	 489,495	
			   869,900	 750,321

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these non-consolidated financial statements.  

NOTES TO NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019 

1  Mandate
The Association of Professional 
Engineers and Geoscientists of the 
Province of British Columbia doing 
business as Engineers and Geoscientists 
British Columbia (the Association) is 
incorporated under the provisions of 
the Engineers and Geoscientists Act. 
The Association’s mandate is to protect 
public safety, health and well-being 
through the application of engineering 
and geoscience, as well as to ensure the 
responsible self-governance and vitality 
of the professions.

The Association is a tax exempt 
organization as described in the 
Income Tax Act (Canada) and, as such 
is exempt from federal and provincial 
income taxes.

2  �Significant accounting 
policies

These non-consolidated financial 
statements include the financial 
activities of the Association exclusive 
of the net assets of Engineers and 
Geoscientists BC Foundation, Engineers 
and Geoscientists BC Benevolent 
Fund Society and member-supported 
branches and divisions (note 12).

Basis of accounting
The non-consolidated financial 
statements have been prepared 
in accordance with Canadian 
accounting standards for not-for-profit 
organizations.

Net assets
The “General fund” comprises two 
components. “Operating” represents 
funds used in the general operating 
and business activities, including any 
extraordinary circumstances that may 
arise and “Invested in property and 
equipment and intangible assets” 
represents the investment in property 
and equipment and intangible assets 
used in those activities. 

The “Property, equipment and systems 
replacement fund” represents an 
appropriation by Council, which serves 
the long-term objective of setting 
aside funds to replace and improve 
property, equipment and systems when 
required. Any repairs, maintenance 
and improvement associated with the 
building are deducted from this fund. 
Council reviews the method and the 
amount appropriated to ensure that the 
appropriation provides a reasonable basis 
for property, equipment and systems 
replacement. All repairs, maintenance 
and improvement deducted from the fund 
and property, equipment and systems 
acquisitions are approved by Council as 
part of the annual budgeting process.

The “Legal and insurance fund” relates 
to an appropriation by Council to set up 
a legal and insurance reserve to allow for 
extraordinary cases and situations over 
and above annual expectations. This 
allows the Association to be prepared 
for future contingencies. The amount 
appropriated for legal and insurance is 
reviewed by Council annually.

Managing capital
The Association defines its capital as 
the amount included in its net asset 
balances. The Association’s objective 
when managing its capital is to 
safeguard its ability to continue as a 
going concern so that it can continue 
to fulfill its mandate as described in 
note 1. While there are no external 
restrictions on any of the net assets, 
Council has appropriated certain of 
the funds for specific purposes as 
described in net assets.

General fund
As at June 30, 2019, the General  
fund comprises $3,272,049  
(2018 – $3,505,655) that is invested 
in property and equipment and 
intangible assets and is not available 
for other future operating activities 

and $5,150,013 (2018 – $4,766,020) 
that is available for future operating 
activities, including any extraordinary 
circumstances that may arise. Council 
has set a target of a minimum of 
three months operating expenses, 
or $3,800,000, to be held in the 
“Operating” net asset fund as a general 
reserve given the stability of annual 
membership fee revenues and the 
Association’s ability to access a pre-
approved line of credit.

Appropriated funds
As at June 30, 2019, the property, 
equipment and systems replacement 
fund balance is $790,150  
(2018 – $445,150). 

As at June 30, 2019, the legal and 
insurance fund balance is $500,000 
(2018 – $500,000). Council estimates 
this amount to cover two consecutive 
years of extraordinary legal and/or 
insurance costs. 

Revenue recognition and  
deferred fees
The Association follows the deferral 
method of accounting for annual fees 
and other revenues which are received, 
but for which services have not yet 
been performed. Membership and other 
fees are billed and received in advance 
on a calendar-year basis. Accordingly, 
a portion of these fees received prior 
to June 30, 2019, have been deferred 
for financial reporting purposes and 
will be recognized as revenue over the 
remainder of the current calendar year.

The Association enters into certain 
contracts for which it subcontracts the 
required services. These contracts are 
accounted for using the deferral method 
of accounting.

All other revenues are recognized when 
earned if the amount to be received 
can be reasonably estimated and 
collectability is reasonably assured.
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Amortization
Amortization is recorded by using the 
following annual rates calculated on a 
straight-line basis:

Building	 3.3%

Intangible assets  
(software & development)	 33.3%

Computer	 10% – 33.3%

Electronic equipment	 20%

Furniture, fixtures and  
office improvements	 10%

Donated services
The Association and its members 
benefit from donated services in the 
form of volunteer time for various 
committees. Donated services are not 
recognized in these non-consolidated 
financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist 
of cash on deposit and high interest 
savings accounts with banks. 

Investments
Investments may consist of federal  
and provincial government bonds, 
treasury bills and guaranteed 
investment certificates consistent with 
the Association’s investment policy.  
The investments are designated as 
held-to-maturity and are recorded 
at amortized cost. Interest income 
is recognized over the lives of the 
instruments using the effective interest 
rate method. Short-term investments 
consist of treasury bills and guaranteed 
investment certificates maturing within 
one year. Long-term investments consist 
of guaranteed investment certificates 
maturing between one to two years. 

Inventory
Inventory relates to exam books. 
Inventory is recorded at the lower of 
cost and net realizable value. Cost is 
determined on a specific item, actual 
cost basis.

Controlled funds
Engineers and Geoscientists BC 
Foundation (the Foundation)

The Foundation provides financial 
support to fund, facilitate and 
promote activities and programs 
related to education in engineering 
and geoscience. The Foundation was 
incorporated on May 11, 1993 under 
the British Columbia Society Act and  
is a registered charity under the  
Income Tax Act.

The Association controls the operations 
of the Foundation through its ability 
to appoint the Directors, who direct 
all activities of the Foundation. The 
Association does not consolidate the 
financial results of the Foundation.

In 2007, a fund was created and 
restricted to be held as enduring 
property for no less than 10 years.  
The income from the property was 
used to fund the operations of the 
Foundation. These funds were invested 
in financial institution guaranteed 
securities. In 2017, the donor-imposed 
restriction expired and the contribution 
was recorded in investments and 
recognized in the statement of revenue, 
expenses and fund balance.

Engineers and Geoscientists BC 
Benevolent Fund Society (the Society)

The Society provides financial 
assistance to members of the 
Association and their dependants who 
qualify for the assistance. The Society 
was incorporated on November 1, 2010 
under the British Columbia Society Act 
and is a registered charity under the 
Income Tax Act.

The Association controls the  
operations of the Society through  
its ability to appoint the Directors,  
who direct all activities of the Society.  
The Association does not consolidate 
the financial results of the Society.

Member-supported branches  
and divisions

The member-supported branches and 
divisions provide local support to the 
members of the Association throughout 
the region of British Columbia.  
The member-supported branches and 
divisions are unincorporated entities. 

The Association controls the operations 
of the member-supported branches 
and divisions as it holds a significant 
economic interest and shares 
complementary objectives with the 
member-supported branches and 
divisions. The Association does not 
consolidate the financial results of 
the member-supported branches and 
divisions. Bank accounts and cash flows 
for all member-supported branches and 
divisions are managed and recorded by 
the Association’s Finance department.

Financial information for the controlled 
funds is provided in note 12.

Use of estimates
The preparation of non-consolidated 
financial statements in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities at the 
date of the non-consolidated financial 
statements and revenues and expenses 
during the year. Significant areas 
requiring the use of estimates relate to 
determining the useful lives of property 
and equipment and the amount of 
membership fees received in advance 
to be deferred. Financial results, as 
determined by actual events, may differ 
materially from those estimates.

Financial instruments
The Association applies Chartered 
Professional Accountants of Canada 
(CPA Canada) Handbook Section 3861, 
Financial Instruments – Disclosure and 
Presentation (note 13). 

3  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
			   2019	 2018
			   $	 $
Cash on hand	 498,411	 892,688
High interest savings accounts	 396,143	 399,759	
			   894,554	 1,292,447

The Association has access to a pre-approved line of credit, secured by the building and land, with a limit of $500,000 of 
which $nil was drawn on at year-end (2018 – $nil). 

 
4  INVESTMENTS
			   2019	 2018
			   $	 $
Guaranteed investment certificates	 1,412,613	 1,497,613
Government of Canada treasury bills	 11,731,633	 9,649,846	
			   13,144,246	 11,147,459

Short-term	 13,046,946	 10,497,346
Long-term	 97,300	 650,113
			   13,144,246	 11,147,459
 

5  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
			   2019	 2018
			   $	 $
Government grants	 279,935	 421,549
Receivables from members	 277,796	 6,808
Project grants (UBC and other associations)	 84,135	 57,938
Innovation magazine	 26,397	 24,887	  
Due from Geoscientists Canada	 162	 55,366	  
GST		  38,323	 28,196	
Other		  62,109	 10,679
			   768,857	 605,423
 

6  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
			   			   2019	 	 2018	

			   	 Accumulated 
			   Cost	 amortization	 Net	  Net 

			   $	 $	 $	 $
Internally generated software	 1,267,664	 1,018,749	 248,915	 357,171
Externally aquired software	 	 849,664	 849,664	 -	 -		
			   	 2,117,328	 1,868,413	 248,915	 357,171		
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7  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
			   			   2019	 	 2018	

			   	 Accumulated 
			   Cost	 amortization	 Net	  Net 

			   $	 $	 $	 $
Land		  874,011	 -	 874,011	 874,011
Building	 3,251,166	 2,601,231	 649,935	 758,364 
Computer	 2,023,191	 1,946,075	 77,116	 65,743
Electronic equipment	 301,855	 122,017	 179,838	 179,260
Furniture, fixtures and  
	 office improvements	 	 2,541,380	 1,299,146	 1,242,234	 1,271,107		
			   	 8,991,603	 5,968,469	 3,023,134	 3,148,485		
	

8  Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represent amounts received that is related to programs and costs expected to occur in the subsequent period.

		  		  Other 
			   External	 deferred 
			   grants	 revenue	 Total

			   $	 $	 $		
Deferred contributions – Beginning of year	 743,124	 349,072	 1,092,196 
 
Amounts received	 1,747,079	 705,408	 2,452,487
Amounts recognized as revenue	 	 (1,527,335)	 (438,626)	 (1,965,961)
Deferred contributions – End of year	 	 962,868	 615,854	 1,578,722	
	

9  DEFERRED FEES
			   2019	 2018
			   $	 $
Professional Engineers and Geoscientists membership fees	 4,800,115	 4,193,221
Engineer and Geoscientist-in-training membership fees	 841,033	 694,667	
Non-resident licence and limited licence	 250,535	 230,867	
Member advantage program for student membership fees	 44,337	 43,044	
Other		  220,838	 144,345
			   6,156,858	 5,306,144

10  COMMITMENTS

The Association has operating lease commitments for office equipment for the next two years requiring the following 
minimum payments:
				    $ 
	 2020		  77,637 
	 2021		  77,637
				    155,274

11  DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 

The Association has established a defined contribution plan for its employees, under which employees contribute 5% of their 
qualifying gross earnings and the Association contributes 7.85% of qualifying employees’ gross earnings. Defined contribution 
plan expense for the year was $506,945 (2018 – $462,024).
 

12  CONTROLLED FUNDS

The Association controls the operations and provides accounting and administration services to the Benevolent Fund Society, the 
Foundation and member-supported branches and divisions. The results and net assets of these operations are not consolidated in 
the non-consolidated financial statements of the Association.

Summary financial information on each of the controlled funds is as follows:

			   2019	 2018
			   $	 $
Benevolent Fund Society
Total assets	 329,935	 311,748
Revenue – contributions and investment income	 47,955	 38,828	
Expenses and grants	 29,247	 23,077	
Cash flows from operating activities	 18,188	 19,217	
Cash flows from investing activities	 10,000	 (13,877)	

Foundation
Total assets	 759,722	 697,727
Total liabilities	 192,107	 179,414	
Net assets	 567,615	 518,313	
Revenue – contributions and investment income	 117,841	 97,881
Expenses and grants	 68,539	 80,941
Cash flows from operating activities	 36,368	 30,536
Cash flows from investing activities	 50,571	 (59,176)

Member supported branches and divisions
The Association has a number of special interest divisions that allow members with common technical background or other 
interests to share and disseminate information and to review and develop policy in that area.

All the Association members are assigned to one of the 20 regional branches and divisions. Branches are led by an executive 
group composed of volunteers who serve as the members’ regional representatives and link back to the Association leadership.

			   2019	 2018
			   $	 $
Branches and divisions
Total assets	 267,629	 253,388
Total liabilities	 26,553	 27,245	
Net assets	 241,076	 226,143
Revenue	 145,778	 156,861
Expenses	 130,845	 143,130
Cash flows from operating activities	 14,933	 13,731

2018/2019 ANNUAL REPORT

44

2018/2019 ANNUAL REPORT

45



13  FINANCIal instruments and risk management

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.  
The Association is not exposed to significant currency risk.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.  
The Association is exposed to interest rate risk on short-term deposits and investments. Management frequently reviews the 
interest rates to mitigate risk and uses professional investment management services.

Market risk and other price risk
Market risk and other price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market 
prices. The Association is not exposed to significant market risk and other price risk.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur 
financial loss. The Association does not have a significant concentration of credit risk in any single party or group of parties. 
Accounts receivable are due primarily from government.

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial 
instruments. The Association is not exposed to significant liquidity risk.

There have not been any significant changes in risk exposure from prior years.

14  MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
			   2019	 2018
			   $	 $
Discipline recoveries	 178,539	 141,500
Other		  65,647	 68,261	
Return to Practice/Reinstatement	 29,300	 38,550	
Certified Professional Program	 117,420	 52,735	
			   390,906	 301,046	

15  OFFICE, GENERAL AND MISCELLANEOUS
			   2019	 2018
			   $	 $
Bank and credit card processing fees	 411,926	 437,436
Office and general (courier, copier, office supplies, storage, training and regalia)	 361,200	 362,624	
Information technology licencing	 98,072	 136,625	
Insurance	 49,383	 40,967	
Dues and subscriptions	 17,899	 13,282
Other		  27,766	 31,323	
			   966,246	 1,022,257	
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